VIRTUAL REGULAR BOARD MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Monday, January 25, 2021 – 6:00 PM
AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that a Virtual Regular Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of
Temple College will be held on Monday, January 25, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. The items listed in
this notice may be considered in any order at the discretion of the Chair of the Board and
items listed for closed session discussion may be discussed and.or approved in open session
and vice versa as permitted by law.
Meeting will be virtual.
Dial-in by Phone:
877 853 5257 US Toll-free or
888 475 4499 US Toll-free
Meeting ID: 915 0835 9604
Passcode:608333
1. Call to Order
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
3. Opportunity for Citizens to Address the Board
Citizens who desire to address the Board on any matter listed on the agenda may
sign up to do so prior to this meeting. Public Comments will be received during this
portion of the meeting. Please limit comments to three minutes. No discussion or final
action will be taken by the Board.
4. Consideration of Consent Agenda
A. Consideration of Approval of Minutes of Regular Meeting on
3
November 16, 2020
B. Consideration of Approval of the Appointment of Full-Time Faculty
8
C. Consideration of Approval of the Appointment of Full-Time
9
Professional Staff
D. Consideration of Approval of the Appointment of Adjunct Faculty
10
E. Consideration of Approval of Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)
11
Report 2020-2021-1st Quarter-September-November 2020
F. Consideration of Approval of Budget Revision Schedule 1st Quarter,
14
FY 2020-2021
G. Consideration of Approval of Quarterly Investment Act Report-1st
15
Quarter 2020-2021
H. Consideration of Approval of Local Policy Manual Revisions
16
5. Consideration of Approval of Disbursements for November 2020 and December 2020
6. Student/Faculty Spotlight
Student Spotlight: Business and Continuing Education (BCE) Students
Latasha Cross
1

Amy Estrada
Outstanding Faculty Presentation
Dr. Christopher Krejci
Kim George
Dr. Beverly Van Note
7. President's Report
8. Reports
A. Faculty Council
B. Academic Affairs and Educational Services Reports
C. Administrative Services Report
D. Temple College Foundation
E. Board Committees
1. Building/Facility Planning Committee Report
2. Finance Committee Report
3. Policy Committee Report
9. New Business
A. Consideration of Approval of Annual Financial and Compliance
Reports for the Year Ended August 31, 2020
B. Consideration of Approval of 2021-2022 Academic Calendar
C. Consideration of Approval of Associate of Science, Geosciences
Degree
D. Consideration of Approval of Associate of Science, Physical Sciences
Degree
E. Consideration of Approval of Level 1 Certificate, Cybersecurity
F. Consideration of Approval of Associate of Applied Science,
Cybersecurity Degree
G. Consideration of Approval of FY2021 Budget Amendments
10. Miscellaneous
11. Executive Session to Consider Personnel, Legal Matters, and Real Estate
12. Adjournment
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MINUTES
VIRTUAL REGULAR BOARD MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
NOVEMBER 16, 2020
A Virtual Regular Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of Temple College was held
Monday, November 16, 2020 beginning at 6:00 PM in the Louise L. Cox Board Room,
Room 916, located in the Marc Nigliazzo Administration Building on the Main Campus.
MEMBERS PRESENT
Bob Browder, Chairman
John Bailey, Vice Chairman
Dr. Andrejs Avots-Avotins
Katie Burrows
Steve Niemeier
Lydia Santibanez
ADMINISTRATION
Dr. Christy Ponce, President
Judy Dohnalik, Assistant to the President and Board of Trustees.
Dr. Susan Guzman-Treviño, Vice President, Academic Affairs
Brandon Bozon, Vice President, Administrative Services
Dr. Evelyn Waiwaiole, Vice President, Development, and Executive Director of the
Foundation
Dr. Randy Baca, Associate Vice-President, Resource Management
Dr. Shelley Pearson, Associate Vice-President, Health Professions
Dr. Robbin Ray, Associate Vice President and Chief of Operations, East
Williamson County Centers
Ellen Davis, Director, Marketing and Media Relations
OTHERS PRESENT
Jo Askins
Rosa Berreles-Acosta
Tracey Cooper
Shawn Dach
Paul Foutz
Gary Jackson
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Lesley Keeling-Olson
Stephen Phelps
Carey Rose
John Stevens
Claudia Turner
Dr. John White
Roberta Wright, Grant Writer
1. Call to Order
Chairman Browder called the Board of Trustees meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
Lydia Santibanez offered the invocation.
Chairman Browder recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
3. Opportunity for Citizens to Address the Board
Chairman Browder asked if there was anyone there tonight wishing to speak before
the Board. There were no citizens to address the Board.
4. Consideration of Consent Agenda
Chairman Browder asked if there were any items that the members wanted to remove
from the consent agenda. He stated that if there were no objections, these items
would be considered. After pausing for any objections, he stated that since there
were no objections, these items were ready for consideration.
On a motion by Lydia Santibanez, seconded by Andrejs Avots-Avotins, and
without negative vote, the Board approved the Consent Agenda as presented
A. Consideration of Approval of Minutes from the Virtual Regular Meeting on
October19, 2020
B. Consideration of Approval of the Appointment of Full-Time Professional Staff
The following individuals are being recommended by the President for
appointment as members of the Full-Time Professional Staff.
 Rachelle Beattie, Ph.D.-Full-Time-Manager-Science Labs-Mathematics,
Sciences and Physical Education Division.
 Yolanda Jones-Full-Time-Testing Coordinator– EWCHEC Hutto-Testing
Center-Student and Enrollment Services Division
 Alicia Hover-Full-Time-Coordinator-Payroll-Records Management-Human
Resources-Resource Management Division
C. Consideration of Approval of the Appointment of Adjunct Faculty
The following individuals are being recommended by the appropriate
departmental and divisional supervisors, and by the Vice President of
Academic Affairs for appointment as members of the Adjunct Faculty.
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 Katharine Myers-Adjunct Professor-Emergency Medical Services Professions
Department-Health Professions Division
 Cynthia Morales-Adjunct Professor-Sonography-Diagnostic Medical
Sonography Department-Health Professions Division
 Bryan Jackson-Adjunct Professor-Emergency Medical Services Professions
Department- Health Professions Division
 Jonathan Pickle, Ph.D.-Adjunct Professor-Philosophy-Social and Behavioral
Sciences Department-Liberal Arts Division
D. Consideration of Approval of the Part-Time Overload Salary Schedules-2nd 8weeks Fall 2020
The Board was asked to approve the Fall 2020 2nd 8-Week Classes Part-Time
Overload Salaries as submitted by the Vice President of Academic Affairs with any
necessary corrections.
5. Approval of Disbursements October 2020
On a motion by Katie Burrows, seconded by John Bailey, and without
negative vote, the disbursements for October 2020 were approved as
presented.
6. Faculty Spotlight
A. Outstanding Faculty/Staff Presentation
Kimberley Clawson, Professor of Biology and Temple College’s 2020-2021
Claudia and W. T. Barnhart Outstanding Teacher of the Year winner, shared
information about what has been done to provide labs for students both at home
and on campus during the pandemic. The students were exposed to hands on
lab kits that provides them with materials to do at home. She reviewed several
labs and their outcomes which were used to teach skills, improved direction
taking and turning in of work,and taught graphing, citing writing, and time
management.
7. President's Report
Dr. Ponce reported on the following:
-Provided update on grants.
-Gave an overview of goals for increasing external funds. Seventeen people joined
a grant writing workshop.
-Presented a historical snapshot of grants by year summary 2012-2020.
-Roberta Wright and Lesley Keeling-Olson were awarded a Student Success Award
in Grant Writing.
-Craig McMurtry provided an update on college athletics. He noted that athletes are
back on campus and appropriate pandemic protocols are being followed and are
also in place when fans are allowed to attend games.
-Brandon Bozon and Al Kent are monitoring and scheduling campus locations for
disinfecting.
8. Reports
A. Faculty Council
5
3

Faculty are encouraged to sign up and use a Magna Commons account as a
professional development resource.
A copy of the complete report was included in the Board materials.
B. Academic Affairs and Educational Services Reports
Dr. Guzman-Trevino shared a note received from a community member last
week commending Temple College.
Mandy Hart is the new director of Advising.
C. Temple College Foundation
Dr. Waiwaiole reported on
-the net income of the Johnson Brothers Ford Temple College Foundation Golf
Tournament
-Temple Health and Bioscience District grant - $20,000
-Temple College Alumni and Friends survey
-Possibilities for renaming Trustees’ Success Scholarship to Legacy Scholarship
D. Board Committees
1. Building/Facility Planning Committee Report
Chairman Browder reported that the Building Committee did not meet in the
month of November 2020.
2. Finance Committee Report
Chairman Browder reported that the Finance Committee did not meet in the
month of November 2020.
3. Policy Committee Report
Policy Committee met November 12, 2020.
9. Miscellaneous
There were no miscellaneous items for discussion.
10. Executive Session to Consider Personnel, Legal Matters, and Real Estate
There were no items to discuss and an Executive Session was not called.
11. Adjournment
There being no further business, the Meeting of the Board of Trustees was
adjourned on a motion by Steve Niemeier, and seconded by John Bailey,
at 7:39 p.m.
NEXT BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING:
The next Virtual Regular Board Meeting of the Temple College Board of Trustees
will be held Monday, January 25, 2021, at 6:00p.m., in the Louise L. Cox Board
Room, located in room 916 in the Marc Nigliazzo Administration Building on the
Main Campus.
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Minutes recorded, transcribed & submitted by:

Judith Dohnalik
Judith Dohnalik, Assistant to the Board of Trustees
Minutes Approved as Submitted: ______
Date
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AGENDA ITEM 4-B
Consideration of Approval of Appointment of Full-Time Faculty

Staff Recommendation: Approval

The following individuals are being recommended by the appropriate departmental and
divisional supervisors, and by the Vice President of Academic Affairs for appointment as
members of the Full-Time Faculty.


Cynthea Andrews-Full-Time-Assistant Professor-Associate Degree Nursing (9 Month
Tenure Track)-Nursing Department-Health Professions Division-Ms. Andrews received
a Master of Science in Nursing-Education degree from Western Governors University.
Cynthea has served as a preceptor for new nurses, and serves as charge nurse in the
acute care setting along with a recipient of the Providence Health Center Employee of
the Year award.



Tony Woodard-Full-Time-Assistant Professor-Associate Degree Nursing (9 Month
Tenure Track)-Nursing Department-Health Professions Division-Mr. Woodard received
a Master of Science in Nursing degree from Texas A&M University – Corpus Christi.
Tony has been involved in Nursing Professional Development, including coordinating
the Nurse Residency Program and teaching new nurse interns in the Emergency
Department along with serving as an adjunct faculty member with Temple College
since August 2020. His practice experience is in Emergency Nursing and Flight
Nursing, and pediatric intensive care.
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AGENDA ITEM 4-C

Consideration of Approval of Appointment of Full-Time Professional Staff

Staff Recommendation: Approval

The following individuals are being recommended by the President for appointment as
members of the Full-Time Professional Staff.
 David Presley-Full-Time-Master Trades Specialist III-Physical Plant-Administrative Services
Division- Mr. Presley has over eight years of experience in the maintenance and
construction field.
 William Velazquez-Full-Time-Maintenance Technician Assistant-Building MaintenancePhysical Plant-Administrative Services Division-Mr. Velazquez has over ten years of
experience with electrical systems and plumbing abilities.
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AGENDA ITEM 4-D

Consideration of Approval of Appointment of Adjunct Faculty

Staff Recommendation: Approval

The following individuals are being recommended by the appropriate departmental and
divisional supervisors, and by the Vice President of Academic Affairs for appointment as
members of the Adjunct Faculty.
 Ellen Nelson-Adjunct Professor-Dental Hygiene-Dental Hygiene Department-Health

Professions Division-Dr. Nelson received a Doctoral of Dental Surgery from The
University of Texas Health Science Center at San Antonio Dental School. She is a licensed
Dentist in the state of Texas, with a specialty in Orthodontics with over thirty years of
dental experience.
 Lauren Edwards-Adjunct Professor-Sonography-Diagnostic Medical Sonography

Department-Health Professions Division- Ms. Edwards received a certification in
Radiology Technology from Baylor University Medical Center. Lauren has close to twenty
years of experience within the field of high risk obstetrics and gynecology.
 Joy Row-Adjunct Professor-Business-Business Department-Business and Career

Professions-Ms. Row received a Master of Business in Business and Marketing
Management degree from The University of Texas at San Antonio. Joy has experience
teaching in high schools and college classrooms for many years.
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AGENDA ITEM 4-E
Consideration of Approval of the Quarterly Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)
Report, 1st Quarter-September-November 2020

Staff Recommendation: Approval

Dr. Randy Baca will report on this item, which is the first quarterly report for 2020-2021.
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Dr. Christina Ponce, President

FROM:

Randolph P. Baca, Ed. D

DATE:

January 6, 2021

RE:

Quarterly Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Report, 1st Quarter

****************************************************************************************************
The attached report is part of Temple College’s Strategic Initiative which focuses on employing a diverse,
highly qualified workforce. This report is for the 1st Quarter, 2020-2021 fiscal year.
The information contained in this report is generated from the NeoGov software and includes the
number of applicants, ethnicity, gender, and hire.
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EEO Summary Report
New Hire records generated from NeoGov between 09/01/20 and 11/30/20

Job Number
Job Title
Division - Administrative Services
CLFT07-2020-0613
Custodian
CLFT08-2020-0613
Groundskeeper

AI

A
A
B H ND TM W Unk Tot AI
B
S
S

H

ND TM W Unk

Tot

AI

A
B H
S

ND TM W Unk Tot AI

A
B H ND TM W Unk Tot
S

Veteran

Online
Apps

Paper Apps

Total Apps

% Online

0 0 2 3 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 2 0
0 0 0

7 0 0 1 2 0 0 2 0
0 0 0 0 3 0 1 6 0

5 0 0
10 0 0

0
0

0
0

0 0 0
0 0 0

0 0 0
0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0
0

0
0

12
10

0
0

12
10

100.00%
100.00%

Division - Health Professions
(2 Positions)
FAPT15-2019-1216
Adjunct Professor, Emergency Medical
0 0Services
0 0 0
(2 Positions)
FAPT10-2020-0907
Adjunct Professor, Sonography
0 0 0 1 0

0 0 0
0 1 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0
2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2
0

0 0
0 0

0
0

0
0

0 0 0
0 0 0

0 0 0
0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0
0

1
0

2
2

0
0

2
2

100.00%
100.00%

Division - Mathematics, Science & Physical Education
PRO23-2020-0820
Manager, Science Labs

0 0 0 0 1

0 1 0

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

1

0 0

0

0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0

1

3

0

3

100.00%

Division - Resource Management
PRO21-2020-0728
Coordinator, Payroll, Records Manager
0 0 0 0 0

1 7 0

8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0 0

0

0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0

0

8

0

8

100.00%

Division - Student and Enrollment Services
CLFT13-2020-0818
Technician, Veterans Affairs
0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 2 0
HSE04-2020-0122
Instructor, High School Equivalency 0(HSE),
0 1 Part-Time,
0 0 1 Grant
2 0 Funded
4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

4
1

0 0
0 0

0
0

0
0

0 0 0
0 0 0

0 0 0
0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0
0

2
2

5
5

0
0

5
5

100.00%
100.00%

AI
AS
B
H

Native American
Asian
Black
Hispanic

ND
TM
W
U

13

No Designation
Two or More Races
White
Unknown

BUDGET REVISION SCHEDULE
FOR FIRST QUARTER 2020-2021
BUDGET DEPARTMENT TITLE
REVISION
NUMBER REVENUE ACCOUNTS:

SEPT

OCT

NOV

BUDGET AT BEGINNING OF MONTH

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

TOTAL REVENUE

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

$45,643,423

EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS:
BUDGET AT BEGINNING OF MONTH
2021-01

Reallocation of expenses for Institutional Effectiveness: $600

2021-02

Correct G/L Account numbers for new FY21 that were created with wrong function &
category for Volleyball and Softball : $2,745

2021-03

Reallocation of expenses for the TC Foundation: $500

2021-04

Reallocation of expenses for Academic Advising: $1,500

2021-05

Reallocation of expenses for the Temple Colleage AEL grants: $6,500

2021-06

Reallocation of expenses for the TBI: $2,000

2021-07

Reallocation of expenses for VPAA: $600

2021-08

Reallocation of expenses for Chemistry and Physcial Sciences: $6,600

2021-09

Reallocation of expenses for Admissions and Records: $6,000

2021-10

Reallocation of expenses for Student Enrollment: $6,250

2021-11

Reallocation of expenses for IT: $125,034

2021-12

Reallocation of expenses between Distance Learning and IT: $25,500

2021-13

Reallocation of expense for Mainteance: $28,800

2021-14

Reallocation of expenses for Accommodations: $800

2021-15

Reallocation of expenses between IT and Music: $1,403; Reallocation of expenses for
Music: $500

2021-16

Reallocation of expenses for Library: $1,400

2021-17

Reallocation of expenses for Library: $200

2021-18

Reallocation of expenses for the Temple College AEL grants: $5,075

2021-19

Reallocation of expenses for the Liberal Arts Division: $200

2021-20

Reallocation of expenses for Perkins Basic Grant: $5,250

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
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Temple College
014501
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES
EMPLOYEE EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES

Note:

Academic Freedom

DGC
(LOCAL)

For expression and use of College District facilities and
grounds by students and registered student organizations, see FLA. For expression and use of College District facilities and grounds by the community, including by
nonstudents and organizations that are not registered
student organizations, see GD. For use of the College
District’s internal mail system, see CHE.

Faculty members are entitled to academic freedom in the conduct
of research and teaching and are tasked with the associated responsibilities. To this end, the College District endorses the academic freedom principles set forth in the Statement of Principles on
Academic Freedom and Tenure (PDF)1 published by the Association of American Colleges and Universities and the American Association of University Professors.
The Board shall address faculty academic freedom and the associated responsibilities in appropriate College District publications.
Complaints regarding alleged violations of the right to academic
freedom shall be filed in accordance with DGBA(LOCAL).

Distribution of
Literature

Written or printed materials, handbills, photographs, pictures, films,
tapes, or other visual or auditory materials not sponsored by the
College District shall not be sold, circulated, distributed, or posted
on any College District premises by any employee or employee organization, except in accordance with this policy.
The College District shall not be responsible for, nor shall the College District endorse, the contents of any materials distributed by
an employee or employee organization.

Limitations on
Content

Materials shall not be distributed by an employee or employee organization on College District property if:
1.

The materials are obscene;

2.

The materials contain defamatory statements about public figures or others;

3.

The materials advocate imminent lawless or disruptive action
and are likely to incite or produce such action;

4.

The materials are considered prohibited harassment [see DIA
series and FFD series];

5.

The materials constitute nonpermissible solicitation; or

6.

The materials infringe upon intellectual property rights of the
College District [see CT].

DATE ISSUED: 5/22/2020
UPDATE 38
DGC(LOCAL)-AJC
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Temple College
014501
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES
EMPLOYEE EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES

Time, Place, and
Manner Restrictions

DGC
(LOCAL)

Distribution of materials shall be conducted in a manner that:
1.

Is not disruptive to College District operations;

2.

Does not impede reasonable access to College District facilities;

3.

Does not result in damage to College District property;

4.

Does not interfere with the rights of others; and

5.

Does not violate local, state, or federal laws or College District
policies and procedures.

The distributor shall clean the area around which the literature was
distributed of any materials that were discarded or leftover.
The vice president, administrative services shall designate times,
locations, and means by which materials that are appropriate for
distribution, as provided in this policy, may be made available or
distributed by employees or employee organizations to employees
or others in College District facilities and areas that are not considered common outdoor areas.
Use of Facilities and
Grounds

The facilities and grounds of the College District shall be made
available to employees or employee organizations when such use
does not conflict with use by, or any of the policies and procedures
of, the College District. The requesting employees or employee organization shall pay all expenses incurred by their use of the facilities in accordance with a fee schedule developed by the Board.
An “employee organization” is an organization composed only of
College District faculty and staff or an employee professional organization.

Requests

To request permission to meet or host a speaker in College District
facilities, interested employees or employee organizations shall file
a written request with the vice president, administrative services in
accordance with administrative procedures.
The employees or the employee organization making the request
shall indicate that they have read and understand the policies and
rules governing use of College District facilities and that they will
abide by those rules.

Approval

The vice president, administrative services shall approve or reject
the request in accordance with provisions and deadlines set out in
this policy and administrative procedures, without regard to the religious, political, philosophical, ideological, academic viewpoint, or
other content of the speech likely to be associated with the employees’ or employee organization’s use of the facility.

DATE ISSUED: 5/22/2020
UPDATE 38
DGC(LOCAL)-AJC
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Temple College
014501
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES
EMPLOYEE EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES

DGC
(LOCAL)

Approval shall not be granted when the official has reasonable
grounds to believe that:
1.

The College District facility requested is unavailable, inadequate, or inappropriate to accommodate the proposed use at
the time requested;

2.

The applicant is under a disciplinary penalty or sanction prohibiting the use of the facility;

3.

The proposed use includes nonpermissible solicitation;

4.

The proposed use would constitute an immediate and actual
danger to the peace or security of the College District that
available law enforcement officials could not control with reasonable efforts;

5.

The applicant owes a monetary debt to the College District
and the debt is considered delinquent;

6.

The proposed activity would disrupt or disturb the regular academic program;

7.

The proposed use would result in damage to or defacement
of property or the applicant has previously damaged College
District property; or

8.

The proposed activity would constitute an unauthorized joint
sponsorship with an outside group.

The vice president, administrative services shall provide the applicant a written statement of the grounds for rejection if a request is
denied.
Common
Outdoor Area
Exception

Employee
Solicitation

Common outdoor areas are traditional public forums and are not
subject to the approval procedures. Employees and employee organizations may engage in expressive activities in common outdoor areas, unless:
1.

The person’s conduct is unlawful;

2.

The use would constitute an immediate and actual danger to
the peace or security of the College District that available law
enforcement officials could not control with reasonable efforts;

3.

The use would materially or substantially disrupt or disturb the
regular academic program; or

4.

The use would result in damage to or defacement of property.

“Employee solicitation” shall mean the sale or offer for sale of any
property or service, whether for immediate or future delivery, and

DATE ISSUED: 5/22/2020
UPDATE 38
DGC(LOCAL)-AJC
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Temple College
014501
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES
EMPLOYEE EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES

DGC
(LOCAL)

the receipt of or request for any gift or contribution by an employee
or employee organization. The term does not include activities engaged in to conduct College District business.
Permitted
Solicitation

Employee solicitation shall be permitted in or on premises owned
or controlled by the College District only if the solicitation does not
violate a sole-source vendor contract clause and the solicitation is:
1.

The sale or offer for sale of any publication, merchandise,
food, or nonalcoholic beverages in an area designated for the
conduct of such activity;

2.

The collection of membership fees or dues by employee organizations at the organizations’ meetings scheduled in accordance with this policy and associated procedures;

3.

The collection of admission fees for the exhibition of movies,
performances, or other programs that are sponsored by an
employee or employee organization and scheduled in accordance with this policy and associated procedures;

4.

The sale of raffle tickets by an employee organization that can
present written evidence from the Internal Revenue Service
that the organization has been granted an exemption from
taxation under 26 U.S.C. 501(c)(3);

5.

The collection of donations by an employee organization; or

6.

The sale of items by an employee organization to its members.

Any solicitations by an employee organization must be on behalf of
or for the benefit of an employee organization or an organization
granted an exemption from taxation under 26 U.S.C. 501(c)(3).
Employee solicitation must comply with law and College District
policies and procedures, including procedures addressing time limits for employee solicitation. No solicitation shall be conducted on
the grounds, sidewalks, or streets of any property either owned or
controlled by the College District, except as approved by the vice
president, administrative services.
Employees may not engage in solicitation during work hours and
may not disrupt the educational environment or the work of other
employees.
Announcements
and Publicity

In accordance with administrative procedures, all employees and
employee organizations shall be given access on the same basis
for making announcements and publicizing their meetings and activities.

DATE ISSUED: 5/22/2020
UPDATE 38
DGC(LOCAL)-AJC
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014501
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES
EMPLOYEE EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES

Identification

Violations

Interference with
Expression

DGC
(LOCAL)

Employees and employee organizations using College District facilities must provide identification when requested to do so by a
College District representative.
Failure to comply with this policy and associated procedures shall
result in appropriate administrative action, including but not limited
to, suspension of an employee’s or employee organization’s use of
College District facilities and/or other disciplinary action in accordance with the College District’s policies and procedures and the
employee handbook.
Faculty, students, or student organizations that interfere with the
expressive activities permitted by this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with the College District’s discipline
policies and procedures. [See DH, FM, and FMA]

Appeals

Decisions made by the administration under this policy may be appealed in accordance with DGBA(LOCAL) and FLD(LOCAL) as applicable.

Publication

This policy and associated procedures must be posted on the College District’s website and distributed in the employee and student
handbooks and other appropriate publications.
1

1940 Statement of Principles on Academic Freedom and Tenure (PDF):
https://www.aaup.org/file/1940%20Statement.pdf

DATE ISSUED: 5/22/2020
UPDATE 38
DGC(LOCAL)-AJC
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Temple College
014501
FREEDOM FROM DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND RETALIATION
SEX AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

Note:

DIAA
(LOCAL)

This policy addresses complaints of sex and gender discrimination, sexual harassment, sexual violence, dating
violence, domestic violence, stalking, and retaliation targeting employees. For additional legally referenced material relating to discrimination, harassment, and retaliation, see DAA(LEGAL). For sex discrimination, sexual
harassment, sexual violence, dating violence, domestic
violence, stalking, and retaliation targeting students, see
FFDA.

Statement of
Nondiscrimination

The College District prohibits discrimination, including harassment,
against any employee on the basis of sex. Retaliation against anyone involved in the complaint process is a violation of College District policy and is prohibited.

Definitions

Solely for purposes of this policy, the term “employee” includes former employees, applicants for employment, and unpaid interns.

Employee
Discrimination

Discrimination against an employee is defined as conduct directed
at an employee on the basis of sex that adversely affects the employee’s employment.
In accordance with law, discrimination on the basis of sex includes
discrimination on the basis of biological sex, gender identity, sexual
orientation, gender stereotypes, or any other prohibited basis related to sex.

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Violence

Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination defined as unwelcome sexual advances; requests for sexual favors; sexually
motivated physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct; or other conduct
or communication of a sexual nature when:
1.

Submission to the conduct is either explicitly or implicitly a
condition of an employee’s employment, or when submission
to or rejection of the conduct is the basis for an employment
action affecting the employee; or

2.

The conduct is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it has
the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with the employee’s work performance or creates an intimidating, threatening, hostile, or offensive work environment.

Sexual violence is a form of sexual harassment. Sexual violence
includes physical sexual acts perpetrated against a person’s will or
where a person is incapable of giving consent due to the victim’s
use of drugs or alcohol or due to an intellectual or other disability.
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“Dating violence” means violence committed by a person who is or
has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature
with the victim. The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on the reporting party's statement and with consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and
the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the
relationship.
“Domestic violence” means violence committed by:


A current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim;



A person with whom the victim shares a child in common;



A person who is cohabitating with, or has cohabitated with,
the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;



Any other member of the victim’s family as defined by state
law;



Any other current or former member of the victim’s household
as defined by state law;



A person in a dating relationship with the victim as defined by
state law; or



Any other person who acts against the victim in violation of
the family violence laws of this state or the jurisdiction where
the conduct occurs.

“Stalking” means engaging in a course of conduct directed at a
specific person that would cause a reasonable person to fear for
the person's safety or the safety of others or suffer substantial
emotional distress.
For the purposes of this definition:

Examples

1.

“Course of conduct” means two or more acts, including, but
not limited to, acts in which the stalker directly, indirectly, or
through third parties, by any action, method, device, or
means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or
communicates to or about a person, or interferes with a person's property.

2.

“Reasonable person” means a reasonable person under similar circumstances and with similar identities to the victim.

Examples of sexual harassment of an employee may include (but
are not limited to) sexual advances; touching intimate body parts;
coercing or forcing a sexual act on another; jokes or conversations
of a sexual nature; sexual assault as defined by law; offensive or
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derogatory language directed at another person’s gender identity;
and other sexually motivated conduct, communication, or contact.
Examples may also include (but are not limited to) forms of dating
violence, domestic violence, or stalking, such as physical or sexual
assaults; name-calling; put-downs; or threats directed at the employee, the employee’s family members, or members of the employee’s household; destroying the employee’s property; threatening to commit suicide or homicide if the employee ends the
relationship; tracking the employee; attempting to isolate the employee from friends and family; threatening an employee’s spouse
or partner; or encouraging others to engage in these behaviors.
Prohibited Conduct

In this policy, the term “prohibited conduct” includes discrimination,
sexual harassment, dating violence, domestic violence, stalking,
and retaliation as described by this policy, even if the behavior
does not rise to the level of unlawful conduct.

Complainant

In this policy, the term “complainant” refers to an employee who is
alleged to have experienced prohibited conduct.

Respondent

In this policy, the term “respondent” refers to a person who is alleged to have committed prohibited conduct.

Confidential
Employee

A “confidential employee” is a person who holds a professional license requiring confidentiality, such as a counselor or medical provider, who is supervised by such a person, or a person who is a
nonprofessional counselor or advocate designated in administrative procedures as a confidential source.

Reporting
Procedures
Reporting by
Alleged Victim

A victim of prohibited conduct has the right to report the incident to
the College District and to receive a prompt and equitable resolution of the report.
An employee who believes that he or she has experienced prohibited conduct may report the alleged acts to his or her immediate
supervisor, to the Title IX coordinator, or to the College President or
designee.
Reports against the Title IX coordinator may be directed to the
College President. A report against the College President may be
made directly to the Board. If a report is made directly to the Board,
the Board shall appoint an appropriate person to conduct an investigation. An employee shall not be required to report prohibited
conduct to the person alleged to have committed the conduct.
Alternatively, the employee may report electronically through the
College District’s website.
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A victim of a crime has the right to choose whether to report the
crime to law enforcement, to be assisted by the College District in
reporting the crime to law enforcement, or to decline to report the
crime to law enforcement.
It is important that a victim of prohibited conduct go to a hospital for
treatment and preservation of evidence, if applicable, as soon as
practicable after the incident.
Reporting by Other
Employees

Any employee who believes that another employee has experienced prohibited conduct, regardless of when or where the incident
occurred, shall immediately report the alleged acts to the Title IX
coordinator. Additionally, the employee may report to the College
President or designee.
A report against the College President must also be made directly
to the Board. If a report is made directly to the Board, the Board
shall appoint an appropriate person to conduct an investigation.

Exceptions
Disclosure at
Event

A person who received the information solely from a disclosure at a
sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating violence, or stalking
public awareness event sponsored by a postsecondary educational
institution or by an employee organization affiliated with the institution is not required to report the prohibited conduct unless the person has authority to institute corrective measures on behalf of the
College District.

Employee
Subject to
Confidentiality
Rules

Absent the employee’s consent, or unless required by law, a confidential employee shall only be required to disclose the type of incident reported and may not disclose information that would violate
the employee’s expectation of privacy. If multiple confidential employees receive information about the same alleged incident, then
only one report disclosing the type of incident must be submitted.

Prior Report

A person who has either learned of an incident of prohibited conduct during the course of the College District’s review or process,
or has confirmed with the person or office overseeing the review or
process that the incident has been previously reported, is not required to report the prohibited conduct.

Title IX Coordinator

Reports of discrimination based on sex, including sexual harassment, may be directed to the Title IX coordinator. The College District designates the following person to coordinate its efforts to
comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as
amended, and related state and federal laws:
Title IX
Coordinator:
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Address:

Nigliazzo Administration Building, Room 954, 2600
South First Street, Temple, TX 76504

Telephone:

(254) 298-8582

Email:

Title IX Coordinator emaili

Webpage:

Title IX/Sexual Misconduct webpageii

Responsible
Employees

All employees, with the exception of confidential employees, are
designated as responsible employees for purposes of compliance
with Title IX.

Timely Reporting

A failure to immediately report prohibited conduct may impair the
College District’s ability to investigate and address the conduct.

Consolidate Reports

When the allegations underlying two or more complaints arise out
of the same facts or circumstances, the College District may consolidate the complaints.

Advisor

Each party to a complaint may be assisted by an advisor of the
party’s choice who may participate in the proceedings in a manner
consistent with College District procedures.

Conflict of Interest
Prohibited

No person designated as the Title IX coordinator, a deputy Title IX
coordinator, an investigator, a decision-maker, or a facilitator of an
informal resolution process shall have a conflict of interest or bias.

Training

A person designated as the Title IX coordinator, a deputy Title IX
coordinator, an investigator, a decision-maker, or a facilitator of an
informal resolution process shall receive training as required by law
and College District procedures.

Days

“Days” shall mean College District business days, unless otherwise
noted. In calculating timelines under this policy, the day a document is filed is “day zero.” The following business day is “day one.”

Extension of
Timelines

Timelines established by this policy and associated procedures
may be subject to a limited extension if good cause, as defined in
this policy and College District regulations, exists. The College District shall promptly provide written notice to the parties of an extension and the reason for the extension. A limited delay determined
to be necessary so as not to impede a criminal or regulatory investigation shall constitute good cause for an extension of timelines
established by this policy and associated procedures.

Investigation of the
Report

The College District may request, but shall not insist upon, a written report. If a report is made orally, the Title IX coordinator or designee shall reduce the report to written form.
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Upon receipt or notice of a report, the Title IX coordinator shall determine whether the allegations, if proven, would constitute prohibited conduct as defined by this policy. If so, the Title IX coordinator
shall promptly offer supportive measures to the complainant. The
Title IX coordinator shall explain the process for filing a formal complaint and assess any request not to investigate. If the College District moves forward with the investigation, the Title IX coordinator
shall immediately provide notice to the known parties to the complaint.
If the Title IX coordinator determines that the allegations, if proven,
would not constitute prohibited conduct as defined by this policy
but may constitute a violation of other College District rules or regulations, the Title IX coordinator shall refer the complaint for consideration under the appropriate policy.

Request Not to
Investigate

The complainant may request that the College District not investigate the allegations. If the complainant requests that the allegations not be investigated, in deciding whether to initiate the investigation, the College District must consider the factors described by
law and any other factors the College District considers relevant.
The College District shall promptly notify the complainant of the decision regarding whether it will conduct the investigation. If the College District decides not to investigate the allegations, the College
District shall take reasonable steps to protect the health and safety
of the College District community.

Formal Complaint

To be considered a formal complaint under Title IX, the complainant or the Title IX coordinator must sign the written report.

Notice to Parties

The notice to the parties must describe the allegations and the formal and informal options for resolution of the complaint. The notice
must state that the respondent is presumed not responsible until a
determination regarding responsibility is made. The notice must
also include information regarding the option to select an advisor,
the opportunity to inspect and review evidence, and the prohibition
on knowingly making false statements or submitting false information during the investigation and any ensuing proceedings.
If the allegations are subsequently amended, the College District
shall provide an updated notice reflecting the new allegations.

Informal Resolution

The College District may offer to the parties a process for the informal resolution of a formal complaint as defined by law. If the parties voluntarily agree in writing to participate in informal resolution
of a formal complaint, the Title IX coordinator shall determine within
three days if informal resolution is appropriate for the complaint. If
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the Title IX coordinator determines that informal resolution is appropriate, then the Title IX coordinator or designee may facilitate
that resolution within ten days. If the Title IX coordinator does not
determine informal resolution to be appropriate, then the complaint
will be subject to the formal resolution process.
Formal Resolution

If the complaint is not subject to the informal resolution process,
the Title IX coordinator shall authorize or undertake an investigation.

Supportive
Measures

If appropriate and regardless of whether a criminal or regulatory investigation regarding the alleged conduct is pending, the Title IX
coordinator shall promptly provide supportive measures intended
to prevent prohibited conduct, protect the safety of the parties and
others, and protect the parties from retaliation prior to the completion of the investigation. Examples of possible supportive
measures include work accommodations, such as leaves of absence or administrative leave; mutual restrictions on contact between the parties; counseling and health services; and increased
security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus.

College District
Investigation

The investigation may be conducted by the Title IX coordinator or a
designee or by a third party designated by the College District,
such as an attorney. When appropriate, the supervisor shall be involved in or informed of the investigation.
The investigation may consist of personal interviews with the complainant, the respondent, and others with knowledge of the circumstances surrounding the allegations. The investigation may also include analysis of other information or documents related to the
allegations.
The parties shall be provided an equal opportunity to present witnesses and evidence and to inspect and review any directly related
evidence obtained by the College District so that the parties may
meaningfully respond during the investigation process. The parties
expected to participate in an investigative interview or other meeting shall be provided written notice in enough time to prepare to
participate.
At least ten days prior to the completion of the investigation report,
the College District must send each party and the party’s advisor
evidence subject to inspection and review. The parties may submit
a written response for consideration by the investigator.

Concluding the
Investigation

The investigation shall be completed within a reasonable time, not
to exceed 30 days from the date of the report.
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The investigator shall prepare a written report of the investigation.
The investigation report shall be filed with the Title IX coordinator
within five days following the completion of the investigation.
Notification of the
Report

College District
Action

The Title IX coordinator shall provide the investigation report, within
the extent permitted by law, to the complainant and the respondent
promptly following receipt. The parties shall be given ten days to
respond to the report.
The Title IX coordinator shall submit the investigation report to the
vice president for administrative services and chief financial officer
promptly after receipt of the parties’ response but no later than the
expiration of the parties’ deadline to respond.
The vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee shall summon the parties for a hearing to be
held within a reasonable time, not to exceed ten days. The hearing
shall be conducted in accordance with law and College District procedures.
After the hearing, the vice president for administrative services and
chief financial officer or designee shall determine whether each individual allegation of prohibited conduct occurred using a preponderance of evidence standard and determine the appropriate disciplinary or corrective action. In making the determination, the vice
president for administrative services and chief financial officer or
designee shall evaluate all relevant evidence objectively and shall
not make credibility assessments based on a person’s status as
the complainant, the respondent, or a witness. The vice president
for administrative services and chief financial officer or designee
shall create a written determination regarding responsibility in accordance with law and College District procedures within five days
following the hearing and submit the determination to the parties
simultaneously.

Disciplinary or
Corrective Action

If the vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee determines that prohibited conduct occurred,
the College District shall promptly respond by taking appropriate
disciplinary or corrective action reasonably calculated to address
the conduct.
The College District may take action based on the results of an investigation, even if the conduct did not rise to the level of prohibited or unlawful conduct.
Examples of disciplinary or corrective action may include:
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Providing a training program for those involved in the complaint;



Providing a comprehensive education program for the College
District community;



Providing counseling for the victim and the student who engaged in prohibited conduct;



Permitting the victim or student engaged in the prohibited
conduct to drop a course in which they both are enrolled without penalty;



Conducting follow-up inquiries to determine if any new incidents or any instances of retaliation have occurred;



Involving employees in efforts to identify problems and improve the College District climate;



Increasing staff monitoring of areas where prohibited conduct
has occurred;



Reaffirming the College District’s policy against discrimination
and harassment; and



Taking other actions described in College District regulations.

Exception

The College District shall minimize attempts to require a complainant to resolve the problem directly with the person who engaged in
the harassment; however, if that is the most appropriate resolution
method, the College District shall be involved in an appropriate
manner.

Improper
Conduct

If the vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee determines that improper conduct occurred that
did not rise to the level of prohibited conduct, the College District
may take disciplinary action in accordance with College District policy and procedures or other corrective action reasonably calculated
to address the conduct.

Dismissal of
Complaint
Mandatory
Dismissal
Permissive
Dismissal

An allegation presented as a formal complaint under Title IX is subject to the mandatory dismissal procedures under law.
Any complaint may be dismissed at any time on request of a complainant. The Title IX coordinator must first assess the request in
accordance with this policy at Request Not to Investigate, above.
A complaint may also be dismissed if specific circumstances prevent the College District from gathering evidence sufficient to reach
a determination as to the complaint or allegations.
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Upon dismissal of a complaint, the Title IX coordinator or the vice
president for administrative services and chief financial officer or
designee shall provide the parties written notice of the dismissal.

Confidentiality

To the greatest extent possible, consistent with law, the College
District shall respect the privacy of the complainant or the respondent or a person who makes a report or serves as a witness. Limited
disclosures may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this policy and associated regulations and to comply with applicable law.

Retaliation

The College District prohibits retaliation against any person for the
purpose of interfering with a right or privilege under this policy; the
complainant; or a person who, in good faith, makes a report or
complaint, serves as a witness, or otherwise participates or refuses
to participate in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this
policy. This prohibition does not apply to discipline of a person who
perpetrated or assists in the perpetration of the prohibited conduct.
A person who is alleged to have experienced retaliation may pursue a claim under this policy or policy FFDA, as appropriate.

Examples

Examples of retaliation may include termination, refusal to hire, demotion, and denial of promotion. Retaliation may also include
threats, unjustified negative evaluations, unjustified negative references, or increased surveillance.

Failure to Report and
False Claims

An employee who fails to make a required report or an employee
or student who intentionally makes a false claim, offers a false
statement, or refuses to cooperate with a College District investigation regarding prohibited conduct shall be subject to appropriate
disciplinary action.

Appeal

If the vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee determines that a contract employee committed
prohibited conduct that warrants suspension without pay or termination mid-contract, the vice president for administrative services
and chief financial officer or designee shall inform the employee in
writing of the determination, and a Board hearing shall be scheduled in accordance with DMAA.

Discipline or
Corrective Action
Employees
Suspension
Without Pay or
Termination of
Contract
Employees
Other Action

If the vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee determines that the employee committed prohibited conduct that warrants other discipline or corrective action,
the vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee shall inform the employee that the employee
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may appeal the determination within ten days in accordance with
DGBA beginning at Level Three.
Students
Suspension

If the vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee determines that a student committed prohibited
conduct that warrants a suspension, the official shall forward the
determination and all evidence collected during the investigation
and hearing to the College President. A conference shall be scheduled within ten days of the notice of determination in accordance
with FMA, beginning at Appeal to College District Administration.

Expulsion

If the vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee determines that the student committed prohibited conduct that warrants expulsion, the official shall forward the
determination and all evidence collected during the investigation
and hearing to the College President to schedule an expulsion
hearing before the Board in accordance with FMA.

Other Action

If the vice president for administrative services and chief financial
officer or designee determines that the student committed prohibited conduct that warrants other discipline or corrective action, the
vice president for administrative services and chief financial officer
or designee shall inform the student that the student may appeal
the determination within ten days in accordance with FMA, beginning at Appeal to College District Administration.

Other Appeals

All other appeals related to this policy may be submitted through
the applicable grievance policy beginning at the appropriate level.
[See DGBA(LOCAL) for employees, FLD(LOCAL) for students,
and GB(LOCAL) for community members]

Complaints Filed
with State or
Federal Agencies
Records Retention

A party shall be informed of any right to file a complaint with appropriate state or federal agencies.

Access to Policy,
Procedures, and
Related Materials

Information regarding this policy and any accompanying procedures, as well as relevant educational and resource materials concerning the topics discussed in this policy, shall be distributed to
applicants for admission and employment and annually to College
District employees, students, and parents or guardians of dual
credit students in compliance with law and in a manner calculated
to provide easy access and wide distribution, such as through electronic distribution and inclusion in the employee and student handbooks and other major College District publications. Information regarding the policy, procedures, and related materials and any
materials used to train a person designated as the Title IX coordinator, a deputy Title IX coordinator, an investigator, a decision-

Retention of records shall be in accordance with the College District’s records retention procedures. [See CIA]
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maker, or a facilitator shall also be prominently published on the
College District’s website on a dedicated page accessible through
a clear link on the homepage, taking into account applicable legal
requirements. Copies of the policy and procedures shall be readily
available at the College District’s administrative offices and shall be
distributed to an employee who makes a report.
i

Title IX Coordinator email: mailto:randy.baca@templejc.edu
Title IX/Sexual Misconduct webpage:
https://www.templejc.edu/resources/campus-police/title-ix-sexualviolence/
ii
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This policy addresses complaints of sex discrimination,
sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, stalking, and retaliation targeting students. For additional legally referenced material relating
to discrimination, harassment, and retaliation, see
FA(LEGAL). For sex discrimination, sexual harassment,
sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, stalking, and retaliation targeting employees, see DIAA.

Statement of
Nondiscrimination

The College District prohibits discrimination, including harassment,
against any student on the basis of sex or gender. Retaliation
against anyone involved in the complaint process is a violation of
College District policy and is prohibited.

Definitions

Discrimination against a student is defined as conduct directed at a
student on the basis of sex or gender that adversely affects the student.

Discrimination
Sexual Harassment
By an Employee

Sexual harassment of a student by a College District employee includes unwelcome sexual advances; requests for sexual favors;
sexually motivated physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct; or other
conduct or communication of a sexual nature when:
1.

A College District employee causes the student to believe that
the student must submit to the conduct to participate in a college program or activity, or that the employee will make an
educational decision based on whether or not the student
submits to the conduct; or

2.

The conduct is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it limits
or denies the student’s ability to participate in or benefit from
the College District’s educational program or activities.

By Others

Sexual harassment of a student, including harassment committed
by another student, includes unwelcome sexual advances; requests for sexual favors; or sexually motivated physical, verbal, or
nonverbal conduct when the conduct is so severe, persistent, or
pervasive that it limits or denies a student’s ability to participate in
or benefit from the College District’s educational program or activities.

Sexual Violence

Sexual violence is a form of sexual harassment. Sexual violence
includes physical sexual acts perpetrated against a person’s will or
where a person is incapable of giving consent due to the victim’s
use of drugs or alcohol or due to an intellectual or other disability.

Dating Violence

“Dating violence” means violence committed by a person who is or
has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature
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with the victim. The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on the reporting party's statement and with consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and
the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the
relationship.
Domestic
Violence

Stalking

“Domestic violence” means violence committed by:


A current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim;



A person with whom the victim shares a child in common;



A person who is cohabitating with, or has cohabitated with,
the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;



Any other member of the victim’s family as defined by state
law;



Any other current or former member of the victim’s household
as defined by state law;



A person in a dating relationship with the victim as defined by
state law; or



Any other person who acts against the victim in violation of
the family violence laws of this state or the jurisdiction where
the conduct occurs.

“Stalking” means engaging in a course of conduct directed at a
specific person that would cause a reasonable person to fear for
the person's safety or the safety of others or suffer substantial
emotional distress.
For the purposes of this definition:

Examples

1.

“Course of conduct” means two or more acts, including, but
not limited to, acts in which the stalker directly, indirectly, or
through third parties, by any action, method, device, or
means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or
communicates to or about a person, or interferes with a person's property.

2.

“Reasonable person” means a reasonable person under similar circumstances and with similar identities to the victim.

Examples of sexual harassment of a student may include (but are
not limited to) sexual advances; touching intimate body parts or coercing physical contact that is sexual in nature; jokes or conversations of a sexual nature; rape; sexual assault as defined by law;
sexual battery; sexual coercion; and other sexually motivated conduct, communications, or contact.
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Examples may also include (but are not limited to) forms of dating
violence, domestic violence, or stalking, such as physical or sexual
assaults; name-calling; put-downs; or threats directed at the student, the student’s family members, or members of the student’s
household; destroying the student’s property; threatening to commit suicide or homicide if the student ends the relationship; tracking
the student; attempting to isolate the student from friends and family; threatening a student’s spouse or partner; or encouraging others to engage in these behaviors.
Gender-Based
Harassment

Gender-based harassment includes physical, verbal, or nonverbal
conduct based on the student’s gender, the student’s expression of
characteristics perceived as stereotypical for the student’s gender,
or the student’s failure to conform to stereotypical notions of masculinity or femininity. For purposes of this policy, gender-based harassment is considered prohibited harassment if the conduct is so
severe, persistent, or pervasive that the conduct limits or denies a
student’s ability to participate in or benefit from the College District’s educational program.
Acts of gender-based harassment may also be considered sex discrimination or sexual harassment.

Examples

Examples of gender-based harassment directed against a student,
regardless of the student’s or the harasser’s actual or perceived
sexual orientation or gender identity, may include (but are not limited to) offensive jokes, name-calling, slurs, or rumors; physical aggression or assault; threatening or intimidating conduct; or other
kinds of aggressive conduct such as theft or damage to property.

Prohibited Conduct

In this policy, the term “prohibited conduct” includes discrimination,
harassment, dating violence, domestic violence, stalking, and retaliation as described by this policy, even if the behavior does not rise
to the level of unlawful conduct.

Complainant

In this policy, the term “complainant” refers to an applicant for admission or a student who is alleged to have experienced prohibited
conduct. The term also includes a former student who is alleged to
have experienced prohibited conduct while participating, or attempting to participate, in the College District’s educational program or activity.

Respondent

In this policy, the term “respondent” refers to a person who is alleged to have committed prohibited conduct.

Confidential
Employee

A “confidential employee” is a person who holds a professional license requiring confidentiality, such as a counselor or medical provider, who is supervised by such a person, or a person who is a
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nonprofessional counselor or advocate designated in administrative procedures as a confidential source.
Reporting
Procedures
Student Report

A victim of prohibited conduct has the right to report the incident to
the College District and to receive a prompt and equitable resolution of the report.
Any student who believes that he or she has experienced prohibited conduct or believes that another student has experienced prohibited conduct should immediately report the alleged acts to the
Title IX coordinator, the College President, or another employee. A
report against the College President may be made directly to the
Board. If a report is made directly to the Board, the Board shall appoint an appropriate person to conduct an investigation. A student
shall not be required to report prohibited conduct to the person alleged to have committed the conduct.
Alternatively, a student may submit the report electronically through
the College District’s website. The submission of an anonymous
electronic report may impair the College District’s ability to investigate and address the prohibited conduct.
A victim of a crime has the right to choose whether to report the
crime to law enforcement, to be assisted by the College District in
reporting the crime to law enforcement, or to decline to report the
crime to law enforcement.
It is important that a victim of prohibited conduct go to a hospital for
treatment and preservation of evidence, if applicable, as soon as
practicable after the incident.

Exception

Employee Report

Absent consent or unless required by law, a student designated in
administrative regulations as a student advocate to whom another
student may speak confidentially concerning prohibited conduct
may not disclose any communication made by the other student.
Any College District employee who suspects or receives notice that
a student or group of students has or may have experienced prohibited conduct, regardless of when or where the incident occurred,
shall immediately notify the Title IX coordinator and shall take any
other steps required by this policy. Additionally, the employee may
report to the College President or designee.
A report against the College President must also be made directly
to the Board. If a report is made directly to the Board, the Board
shall appoint an appropriate person to conduct an investigation.

Exceptions
Disclosure at
Event

A person who received the information solely from a disclosure at a
sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating violence, or stalking
public awareness event sponsored by a postsecondary educational
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institution or by a student organization affiliated with the institution
is not required to report the prohibited conduct unless the person
has the authority to institute corrective measures on behalf of the
College District.
Employee
Subject to
Confidentiality
Rules

Absent the student’s consent, or unless required by law, a confidential employee shall only be required to disclose the type of incident reported and may not disclose information that would violate
the student’s expectation of privacy. If multiple confidential employees receive information about the same alleged incident, then only
one report disclosing the type of incident must be submitted.

Prior Report

A person who has either learned of an incident of prohibited conduct during the course of the College District’s review or process,
or has confirmed with the person or office overseeing the review or
process that the incident has been previously reported, is not required to report the prohibited conduct.

Title IX Coordinator

Reports of discrimination based on sex, including sexual harassment and gender-based harassment, may be directed to the Title
IX coordinator. The College District designates the following person
to coordinate its efforts to comply with Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, as amended, and related state and federal
laws:
Title IX
Coordinator:

Randolph P. Baca, Associate Vice President,
Resource Management

Address:

Nigliazzo Administration Building, Room 954, 2600
South First Street, Temple, TX 76504

Telephone:

(254) 298-8582

Email:

Title IX Coordinator emaili

Webpage:

Title IX/Sexual Misconduct webpageii

Responsible
Employees

All employees, with the exception of confidential employees, are
designated as responsible employees for purposes of compliance
with Title IX.

Timely Reporting

A failure to immediately report prohibited conduct may impair the
College District’s ability to investigate and address the conduct.

Consolidate Reports

When the allegations underlying two or more reports arise out of
the same facts or circumstances, the College District may consolidate the reports.

Advisor

Each party to the complaint may be assisted by an advisor of the
party’s choice who may participate in the proceedings in a manner
consistent with College District procedures.
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Conflict of Interest
Prohibited

No person designated as the Title IX coordinator, a deputy Title IX
coordinator, an investigator, a decision-maker, or a facilitator of an
informal resolution process shall have a conflict of interest or bias.

Training

A person designated as the Title IX coordinator, a deputy Title IX
coordinator, an investigator, a decision-maker, or a facilitator of an
informal resolution process shall receive training as required by law
and College District procedures.

Days

“Days” shall mean College District business days, unless otherwise
noted. In calculating timelines under this policy, the day a document is filed is “day zero.” The following business day is “day one.”

Extension of
Timelines

Timelines established by this policy and associated procedures
may be subject to a limited extension if good cause, as defined in
this policy and College District regulations, exists. The College District shall promptly provide written notice to the parties of an extension and the reason for the extension.

Investigation of the
Report

The College District may request, but shall not require, a written report. If a report is made orally, the Title IX coordinator or designee
shall reduce the report to written form.

Initial Assessment

Upon receipt or notice of a report, the Title IX coordinator shall determine whether the allegations, if proven, would constitute prohibited conduct as defined by this policy. If so, the Title IX coordinator
shall promptly offer supportive measures to the complainant. The
Title IX coordinator shall explain the process for filing a formal complaint and assess any request not to investigate. If the College District moves forward with the investigation, the Title IX coordinator
shall immediately provide notice to the known parties to the complaint.
If the Title IX coordinator determines that the allegations, if proven,
would not constitute prohibited conduct as defined by this policy
but may constitute a violation of other College District rules or regulations, the Title IX coordinator shall refer the complaint for consideration under the appropriate policy.

Request Not to
Investigate

The complainant may request that the College District not investigate the allegations. If the complainant requests that the allegations not be investigated, in deciding whether to initiate the investigation, the College District must consider the factors described by
law and any other factors the College District considers relevant.
The College District shall promptly notify the complainant of the decision regarding whether it will conduct the investigation. If the College District decides not to investigate the allegations, the College
District shall take reasonable steps to protect the health and safety
of the College District community.
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Formal Complaint

To be considered a formal complaint under Title IX, the complainant or the Title IX coordinator must sign the written report.

Notice to Parties

The notice to the parties must describe the allegations and the formal and informal options for resolution of the complaint. The notice
must state that the respondent is presumed not responsible until a
determination regarding responsibility is made. The notice must
also include information regarding the option to select an advisor,
the opportunity to inspect and review evidence, and the prohibition
on knowingly making false statements or submitting false information during the investigation and any ensuing proceedings.
If the allegations are subsequently amended, the College District
shall provide an updated notice reflecting the new allegations.

Informal Resolution

The College District may offer to the parties a process for the informal resolution of a formal complaint as defined by law. If the parties voluntarily agree in writing to participate in informal resolution
of the complaint, the Title IX coordinator shall determine within
three days if informal resolution is appropriate for the complaint. If
the Title IX coordinator determines that informal resolution is appropriate, then the Title IX coordinator or designee may facilitate
that resolution within ten days. If the Title IX coordinator does not
determine informal resolution to be appropriate, then the complaint
will be subject to the formal resolution process. This process is not
available in situations where an employee is alleged to have sexually harassed a student.

Formal Resolution

If the complaint is not subject to the informal resolution process,
the Title IX coordinator shall authorize or undertake an investigation, except as provided below at Criminal or Regulatory Investigation.

Supportive
Measures

If appropriate and regardless of whether a criminal or regulatory investigation regarding the alleged conduct is pending, the Title IX
coordinator shall promptly provide supportive measures intended
to address prohibited conduct, protect the safety of the parties and
others, and protect the parties from retaliation prior to the completion of the investigation. Examples of possible supportive
measures include academic accommodations, such as extensions
of deadlines or other course-related adjustments and modifications
of class schedules; housing and dining modifications; temporary
removal from an education program or activity in accordance with
law; counseling; health services; campus escort services; mutual
restrictions on contact between the parties; and increased security
and monitoring of certain areas of the campus.
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The investigation may be conducted by the Title IX coordinator or
designee or by a third party designated by the College District,
such as an attorney.
The investigation may consist of personal interviews with the complainant, the respondent, and others with knowledge of the circumstances surrounding the allegations. The investigation may also include analysis of other information or documents related to the
allegations.
The parties shall be provided an equal opportunity to present witnesses and evidence and to inspect and review any directly related
evidence obtained by the College District so that the parties may
meaningfully respond during the investigation process. The parties
expected to participate in an investigative interview or other meeting shall be provided written notice in enough time to prepare to
participate.
At least ten days prior to the completion of the investigation report,
the College District must send each party and the party’s advisor
evidence subject to inspection and review. The parties may submit
a written response for consideration by the investigator.

Criminal or
Regulatory
Investigation

Concluding the
Investigation

If a law enforcement or regulatory agency notifies the College District that a criminal or regulatory investigation has been initiated,
the College District shall confer with the agency to determine if the
College District’s investigation would impede the criminal or regulatory investigation. The College District shall proceed with its investigation only to the extent that it does not impede the ongoing criminal or regulatory investigation. After the law enforcement or
regulatory agency has completed gathering its evidence, the College District shall promptly resume its investigation. Any delay under this provision shall constitute good cause for an extension of
timelines established by this policy and associated procedures.
The investigation shall be completed within a reasonable time, not
to exceed 30 days from the date of the report.
The investigator shall prepare a written report of the investigation.
The investigation report shall be filed with the Title IX coordinator
within five days following the completion of the investigation.

Notification of the
Report

The Title IX coordinator shall provide the investigation report, within
the extent permitted by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act (FERPA) or other law, to the complainant and the respondent
promptly following receipt. The parties shall be given ten days to
respond to the report.
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The Title IX coordinator shall submit the investigation report and
any response from the parties to the academic affairs promptly after receipt of the parties’ response but no later than the expiration
of the parties’ deadline to respond.
The vice president, academic affairs or designee shall summon the
parties for a hearing to be held within a reasonable time, not to exceed ten days, following the receipt of the investigation report. The
hearing shall be conducted in accordance with law and College
District procedures.
After the hearing, the vice president, academic affairs or designee
shall determine whether each individual allegation of prohibited
conduct occurred using a preponderance of the evidence standard
and determine the appropriate disciplinary or corrective action. In
making the determination, the vice president, academic affairs or
designee shall evaluate all relevant evidence objectively and shall
not make credibility assessments based on a person’s status as
the complainant, the respondent, or a witness. The academic
affairs or designee shall create a written determination regarding
responsibility in accordance with law and College District procedures within five days following the hearing and submit the determination to the parties simultaneously.

Disciplinary or
Corrective Action

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
prohibited conduct occurred, the College District shall promptly respond by taking appropriate disciplinary or corrective action reasonably calculated to address the conduct.
Examples of disciplinary or corrective action may include:


Implementing the disciplinary measures described in FM for
students or DH and DM series for employees;



Providing a training program for those involved in the complaint;



Providing a comprehensive education program for the College
District community;



Providing counseling for the victim and the party who engaged in prohibited conduct;



Permitting the victim or student who engaged in the prohibited
conduct to drop a course in which they both are enrolled without penalty;



Conducting follow-up inquiries to determine if any new incidents or any instances of retaliation have occurred;
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Involving students in efforts to identify problems and improve
the College District climate;



Increasing staff monitoring of areas where prohibited conduct
has occurred;



Reaffirming the College District’s policy against discrimination
and harassment; and



Taking other actions described in College District regulations.

Exception

The College District shall minimize attempts to require a complainant to resolve the problem directly with the person who engaged in
the harassment; however, if that is the most appropriate resolution
method, the College District shall be involved in an appropriate
manner. In no event may a student be required to resolve a complaint of sexual harassment by an employee directly with the employee.

Improper Conduct

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
improper conduct occurred that did not rise to the level of prohibited conduct, the College District may take disciplinary action in accordance with College District policy and procedures or other corrective action reasonably calculated to address the conduct.

Dismissal of
Complaint
Mandatory
Dismissal
Permissive
Dismissal

An allegation presented as a formal complaint under Title IX is subject to the mandatory dismissal procedures under law.
Any complaint may be dismissed at any time on request of a complainant. The Title IX coordinator must first assess the request in
accordance with this policy at Request Not to Investigate, above.
A complaint may also be dismissed if specific circumstances prevent the College District from gathering evidence sufficient to reach
a determination as to the complaint or allegations.

Notice of Dismissal

Upon dismissal of a complaint, the Title IX coordinator or the vice
president, academic affairs or designee shall provide the parties
written notice of the dismissal.

Confidentiality

To the greatest extent possible, consistent with law, the College
District shall respect the privacy of the complainant or the respondent or a person who makes a report or serves as a witness. Limited
disclosures may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this policy and associated regulations and to comply with applicable law.

Retaliation

The College District prohibits retaliation against any person for the
purpose of interfering with a right or privilege under this policy; the
complainant; or a person who, in good faith, makes a report or
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complaint, serves as a witness, or otherwise participates or refuses
to participate in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this
policy. This prohibition does not apply to discipline of a person who
perpetrated or assists in the perpetration of the prohibited conduct.
A person who is alleged to have experienced retaliation may pursue a claim under this policy or policy DIAA, as appropriate.
Examples

Examples of retaliation may include threats, rumor spreading, ostracism, assault, destruction of property, unjustified punishments,
or unwarranted grade reductions. Unlawful retaliation does not include petty slights or annoyances.

Failure to Report and
False Claims

An employee who fails to make a required report or a student or
employee who intentionally makes a false claim, offers a false
statement, or refuses to cooperate with a College District investigation regarding prohibited conduct shall be subject to appropriate
disciplinary action.

Appeal

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
a student committed prohibited conduct that warrants a suspension, the official shall forward the determination and all evidence
collected during the investigation and hearing to the College
President. A conference shall be scheduled within ten days of the
notice of determination in accordance with FMA, beginning at Appeal to College District Administration.

Discipline or
Corrective Action
Students
Suspension
Expulsion

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
the student committed prohibited conduct that warrants expulsion,
the official shall forward the determination and all evidence collected during the investigation and hearing to the College President
to schedule an expulsion hearing before the Board in accordance
with FMA.

Other Action

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
the student committed prohibited conduct that warrants other discipline or corrective action, the vice president, academic affairs or
designee shall inform the student that the student may appeal the
determination within ten days in accordance with FMA, beginning
at Appeal to College District Administration.

Employee
Suspension
Without Pay or
Termination of
Contract
Employees
Other Action

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
a contract employee committed prohibited conduct that warrants
suspension without pay or termination mid-contract, the vice
president, academic affairs or designee shall inform the employee
in writing of the determination, and a Board hearing shall be scheduled in accordance with DMAA.
If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
the employee committed prohibited conduct that warrants other
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discipline or corrective action, the academic affairs or designee
shall inform the employee that the employee may appeal the determination within ten days in accordance with DGBA, beginning at
Level Three.
Other Appeals

All other appeals related to this policy may be submitted through
the applicable grievance policy beginning at the appropriate level.
[See DGBA(LOCAL) for employees, FLD(LOCAL) for students,
and GB(LOCAL) for community members]

Complaints Filed
with OCR

A party shall be informed of his or her right to file a complaint with
the U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights (OCR).

Records Retention

Retention of records shall be in accordance with the College District’s records retention procedures. [See CIA]

Access to Policy,
Procedures, and
Related Materials

Information regarding this policy and any accompanying procedures, as well as relevant educational and resource materials concerning the topics discussed in this policy, shall be distributed to
applicants for admission and employment and annually to College
District employees, students, and parents or guardians of dual
credit students in compliance with law and in a manner calculated
to provide easy access and wide distribution, such as through electronic distribution and inclusion in the employee and student handbooks and other major College District publications. Information regarding the policy, procedures, and related materials and any
materials used to train a person designated as the Title IX coordinator, a deputy Title IX coordinator, an investigator, a decisionmaker, or a facilitator shall also be prominently published on the
College District’s website on a dedicated page accessible through
a clear link on the homepage, taking into account applicable legal
requirements. Copies of the policy and procedures shall be readily
available at the College District’s administrative offices and shall be
distributed to a student who makes a report.
i

Title IX Coordinator email: mailto:randy.baca@templejc.edu
Title IX/Sexual Misconduct webpage:
https://www.templejc.edu/resources/campus-police/title-ix-sexualviolence/
ii
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College District faculty and staff shall submit an alleged violation or
violations of College District policies and procedures, including the
rules for student conduct [see FLB], committed by a student to the
vice president, academic affairs within a reasonable time following
an alleged incident, not to exceed ten College District business
days. The allegations must be submitted in writing, through traditional or electronic means, and must describe the violation and any
surrounding facts.
The vice president, academic affairs or designee shall investigate
the matter as necessary. If an allegation is deemed to be unfounded, the vice president, academic affairs or designee shall dismiss the allegation and shall provide the student and employee
written notice that the allegation of misconduct was made against
the student and that the allegation was dismissed.

Exception
Conference

Reports of sex discrimination or sexual harassment shall be submitted in accordance with DIAA or FFDA, as appropriate.
If, however, the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that the allegation warrants further consideration, the vice
president, academic affairs or designee shall summon the student
for a conference to be held within a reasonable time, not to exceed
ten College District business days, following the receipt of the allegation of misconduct.
At the conference, the vice president, academic affairs or designee shall notify the student of the allegation or allegations and
provide the student an opportunity to respond.

Unfounded
Allegations

After conferring with the student, if the academic affairs or designee determines that the student did not commit a violation, the
allegation or allegations shall be dismissed as unfounded. The student shall be provided written notice of the dismissal.

Misconduct
Warranting a
Penalty

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
the student committed misconduct that warrants a penalty other
than suspension or expulsion, the vice president, academic affairs
or designee shall provide the student written notice of the penalty
and the student’s right to appeal to the disciplinary appeals committee.

Suspension

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
the student committed misconduct that warrants a suspension, the
vice president, academic affairs or designee shall inform the student in writing of the determination, and a hearing shall be scheduled for consideration by the disciplinary appeals committee as described below.
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If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
the student committed misconduct that warrants expulsion, the official shall inform the student in writing of the determination. The vice
president, academic affairs or designee shall forward the determination and all evidence collected during the investigation and conference to the College President in order to schedule an expulsion
[see Expulsion Hearing, below].
The vice president, academic affairs or designee may take immediate disciplinary action, including suspension pending a hearing,
against a student for policy violations if the continuing presence of
the student poses a danger to persons or property or an ongoing
threat of disrupting the educational environment.
The disciplinary appeals committee shall be convened:
1.

On request of a student appealing a penalty other than suspension or expulsion. The request must be filed in writing
within ten College District business days of the date of the administration’s written notice.

2.

Automatically, if the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that a student committed misconduct warranting suspension.

Composition

The disciplinary appeals committee shall be composed of at least
three College District employees and a minimum of one current
College District student. The members of the disciplinary appeals
committee and the committee chairperson shall be designated according to procedures developed by the College President. All
members of the disciplinary appeals committee shall be eligible to
vote during the hearing.

Hearing Notice

The vice president, academic affairs or designee shall notify the
student by letter of the date, time, and place for the hearing. Unless the student and the vice president, academic affairs or designee otherwise agree, the hearing shall take place within a reasonable time period, not to exceed ten College District business
days after the date of the student’s request for the hearing or the
vice president, academic affairs or designee’s determination that
the student should be suspended.

Contents of
Notice

The notice shall:
1.

Direct the student to appear on the date and at the time and
place specified.

2.

Advise the student of his or her rights:
a.
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b.

To be assisted by an adviser or legal counsel at the
hearing.

c.

To call witnesses, request copies of evidence in the College District’s possession, and offer evidence and agreement on his or her own behalf.

d.

To make an audio recording of the proceedings, after
first notifying the vice president, academic affairs or designee in advance of the hearing, or, at the student’s
own expense, to have a stenographer present at the
hearing to make a stenographic transcript of the hearing.

e.

To ask questions of each witness who testifies against
the student.

3.

Contain the names of witnesses who will testify against the
student and a description of documentary and other evidence
that will be offered against the student.

4.

Contain a description of the allegations of misconduct in sufficient detail to enable the student to prepare his or her defense against the charges.

5.

State the proposed punishment or range of punishments that
may be imposed.

Failure to Appear
for Hearing

The disciplinary appeals committee may impose appropriate punishment upon a student who fails without good cause to appear for
the hearing; for purposes of assessing punishment, the committee
may proceed with the hearing in the student’s absence.

Hearing Procedure

The hearing shall proceed as follows:
1.

The chairperson shall read the description of the misconduct.

2.

The chairperson shall inform the student of his or her rights.

3.

The designated official or representative shall present the
College District’s case.

4.

The student or representative shall present the student’s defense.

5.

The designated College District official or representative shall
present rebuttal evidence.

6.

The committee members may ask questions of witnesses testifying on behalf of the student or the College District.

7.

The designated official or representative shall summarize and
argue the College District’s case.
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8.

The student or representative shall summarize and argue his
or her case.

9.

The designated official or representative shall have an opportunity for rebuttal argument.

10. The committee members shall deliberate in closed session.
The committee members shall vote on the issue of whether or
not the student violated College District policies and procedures, including the rules for student conduct.
11. If the committee finds the student did commit misconduct, the
committee shall determine whether the penalty assessed, or
proposed in the case of suspension, by the vice president,
academic affairs or designee is appropriate and, if necessary,
shall assess a different or additional penalty.
12. The committee chairperson shall communicate the decision
and any findings of facts in support of the committee’s decision to all parties in writing within ten College District business
days of the hearing. The notice shall include procedures for
appealing the committee’s decision to the College President.
All hearings shall be recorded by the College District. A stenographic digest of the recording shall be made if needed for an appeal, and, on request, the student shall be given a copy of the digest. The student or the student’s representative may listen to the
tape recording and compare it with the digest.
Evidence

Appeal to College
District
Administration

Evidence shall be handled in accordance with the following:
1.

Legal rules of evidence do not apply; the committee chairperson may admit evidence or exclude evidence considered to
be irrelevant, immaterial, and unduly repetitious.

2.

At the hearing, the College District shall be required to prove
by a preponderance of the evidence that the charges are true.

3.

A student may not be compelled to testify.

4.

The committee shall determine if a violation has occurred and
assess an appropriate penalty based solely on the evidence
presented at the hearing.

A student may, within ten College District business days of receiving notice of the disciplinary appeal committee’s decision, petition
in writing the College President to review the decision. The student’s petition shall state with particularity why the decision is believed to be incorrect. After receiving notice of the appeal, the disciplinary appeals committee chairperson shall forward all evidence
considered during the hearing, the audio recording of the hearing,

DATE ISSUED: 7/17/2020
UPDATE 39
FMA(LOCAL)-X

48

4 of 5

Temple College
014501
DISCIPLINE AND PENALTIES
DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE

FMA
(LOCAL)

and the digest of the hearing, if applicable, to the College
President.
The College President shall hold a conference within ten College
District business days after the appeal notice is filed. At the conference, the student may provide information concerning any documents or information relied on by the committee. The College
President may set reasonable time limits for the conference. The
conference shall be audio recorded.
The College President shall provide the student a written response,
stating the basis of the decision, within ten College District business days following the conference. In reaching a decision, the
College President may consider the evidence included in the student’s petition, provided during the conference, and forwarded by
the committee chairperson. The College President may act to affirm, modify, remand, or reverse the decision of the disciplinary appeals committee. The College President’s decision is final.
Expulsion Hearing

If the vice president, academic affairs or designee determines that
the student’s misconduct warrants expulsion [see Conference,
above], the College President shall convene to conduct an expulsion hearing. The College President or designee shall inform the
student of the date, time, and place of the meeting.
The College President shall proceed according to the procedures
set out at Disciplinary Appeals Committee—Failure to Appeal for
Hearing, Hearing Procedure, and Evidence, above, with the College President substituted for references to the committee and the
presiding officer.
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January 2021
Faculty Council Report
It was great to welcome everyone back for the Spring, 2021 semester at the Zoom meeting on
January 12th. These types of meeting experiences always give us a little more empathy for the
things our students face in the online environment – internet drops, camera problems,
microphone problems, and more.
We had a busy Fall semester. Thanks to everyone who helped with the SACSCOC reaffirmation process. The report of the committee will be presented and voted on in June at
which time it will be official. No areas of noncompliance for either the reaffirmation or the Quality
Enhancement Plan (QEP). Congratulations to everyone!
Thanks to everyone who reached out to me about issues they encountered this semester.
Those concerns were shared with the appropriate people – including Dr. Guzman-Trevino. I
believe all issues were addressed or in progress – if not, please contact me.
We have faculty on several college committees currently working on issues (Fall, 2020):
 Center for Teaching & Learning: Thanks to Kim George and Kim Clawson for all their
hard work on the CTL website and professional development offerings. Thank you to
those faculty who have developed and presented sessions. Thanks to those of you who
have set up your accounts and are using the site. Thanks to those of you who have set
up your accounts and are using Magna Commons. I want to remind everyone to check
the emails sent by Kim George and Dr. Guzman Trevino about Professional
Development. Get your accounts set up in the CTL and Magna Commons. Don’t forget
the 2 PD sessions today and 3 tomorrow. If you have questions please email Kim
George.
 Evaluation Committee: Thanks to those who volunteered to pilot the new evaluation
process in D2L. It did bring up some issues about the evaluation and Faculty Council
was asked to look at the current questions on the form and their effectiveness. If you are
interested in serving on an ad hoc committee on this subject please email me.
 Syllabi Committee: This group is working with administrators and a company to
develop a format to achieve compliance with HB 2504. This legislation requires certain
information (syllabi, faculty vitas, and certain financial information) be available within
three clicks of the mouse. Our upgrade from TConnect to Self-Serve requires a new
solution for syllabi. Faculty council members Paul Foutz, Brian St. Amour, and Kim
George are serving on this committee to represent faculty.
 Wellness Committee: Thanks to faculty Deidra Blankenship, Glenda Moore, Dawn
Riess, and Paula Eubanks who volunteered to serve on the college wellness committee.
This committee is open to anyone who is interested. If you are interested, contact Dr.
Robbin Ray, chairperson. Also, don’t forget the Walk Across Texas activity planned for
later this semester. Watch for emails!
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 Return to Campus Committee: This was a new committee also this year to address
issues related to Covid. Thanks to Faculty Council members Paul Foutz, Sharon
Warden, Candace Behnsen, Melissa Machalek, Glenda Moore, Sara Harris Baker,
Sandra Melendez, Jason Locklin, Brian St. Amour, Honey Golden, Tracey Cooper, Jeff
Fritz, John McClain, Brooke Robinson, Kim Sebek, David Fry, Gail Cox, Norm Bergeron,
Alicia Buck, and Felix Guzman for their work on this committee. This committee is also
open to anyone who is interested. If you are interested, contact Dr. Shelley Pearson,
chairperson.
 Master Planning: Thanks to everyone who provided information, attended meetings,
and in general provide faculty input into the Master Planning Process. (I saw many of
you at the public meetings as well as the employee ones). The plan was presented
yesterday during the Welcome Week meeting by Patrick from SanTec. Watch for more
on this!
 Policy Committee: Thanks to Jeff Fritz, Lesley Keeling-Olson, and Erica Perrine who
represent Faculty Council on this very important committee. Jeff will be reporting on one
of the policies later in the meeting. PLEASE take time to review policies that go out for
21 day review. Don’t think your comments don’t matter. The comments are shared with
the committee and the group decides if changes should be made based on the comment
review.
Spring 2021: Upcoming activities
 Strategic Planning: Spring 2021 should begin the Strategic Planning Process. I have
asked the President to include as many faculty as possible. That said, if you have the
opportunity to be on the committee, please take advantage of it. It is vitally important that
we have input into planning for the next few years.
 Barnhart Award: Group consensus at the meeting was to continue the practice of
nominating faculty in Spring semester and voting at the beginning of the next Fall
semester. This will require a bylaws change. The Ways and Means Committee will work
on this.
 Elections: Elections will be held later this semester. An email will be sent listing the
officers up for election and the qualifications and duties of each office. The list of
committees and functions will also be sent.
 Faculty Development Leave Grant: Deadline for Applications is February 1st. No
applications will be taken after February 1st. The policy was read at the meeting to inform
faculty about the grant and the requirements. (The policy follows this report.)
 College Grievance Policy: Changes to the policy (which is currently in a 21 day
comment period) may require a bylaws change on electing representatives. This bylaw
change will another charge to the Ways and Means Committee who is responsible for
changes to our bylaws.
Welcome to our new faculty: Cynthea Andrews (Nursing), Tony Woodard (Nursing), Kat Myers
(EMS) and Bryan Jackson (EMS).
Please contact me if you have issues or concerns affecting faculty on campus .
Share with me the positive things going on in your department or division.
Have a GREAT52Semester! Claudia
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MEMORANDUM
Vice President of Academic
Affairs and Student Services
To:

Dr. Christina Ponce

From:

Dr. Susan Guzmán-Treviño

Subject: January 25, 2021 Academic Affairs and Student Services Report
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT SERVICES REPORT
Student Spotlight: Business and Continuing Education (BCE) Students:
Latasha Cross and Amy Estrada will share how they were able to participate in our BCE
program through a sponsorship provided by Adult Education and Literacy (AEL).
Outstanding Faculty Presentation: English faculty Dr. Christopher Krejci, Ms. Kim George,
and Dr. Beverly Van Note will share information on their article recently published in Teaching
British Literature Published in TYCA-SW Newsletter. Their article title is: "Time’s Up!
Confronting Toxic Masculinity in British Literature I.”
DIVISION OF BUSINESS AND CAREER PROFESSIONS
Criminal Justice Department--Temple Police Academy
We had 16 cadets start and 16 cadets pass the state exam on their first attempt, continuing
to maintain our 100% pass rate on first attempt. Academically, all cadets ended with an A
average!
We had instructors from Georgetown Police Department, Bell County Sherriff’s office, Temple
Police Department, Belton Police Department, Central Texas Council of Governments,
Georgetown Police Department, Harker Heights Police Department, Temple College, Texas
Alcohol and Beverage Commission, Bell County Communications, and Temple Fire and
Rescue.
We had cadets from the Temple Police Department, Bell County Sherriff’s Office, Harker
Heights Police Department, Belton Police Department, Copperas Cove Police Department,
Temple Fire and Rescue, and the Georgetown Police Department. In fact, the Georgetown
officer was hired while in the academy.
The next academy is set to start on February 22, 2021.
eLEARNING
eLearning Operations
Spring Semester
 We created (761) course shells on November 10.
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We held no face-to-face eLearning workshops for students; instead, we are using
online tutorials, which were emailed to students and posted as a D2L news item.

Online Tutorials for Students, COVID-19 resources
Christa Quigley took a test version of the quiz and reported back to Lindsay Williams,
Webmaster. She is working with Ellen Davis to get approval for the custom pieces required
for the quiz and will respond back with an update.
Integrated learning Platform (ILP)
eLearning is resuming this project with on-site Ellucian consultant Hatem Akl to address D2L
course naming and build logistics.
Proctored Testing
 Honorlock is continuing to be used during spring semester, information document
developed for faculty with useful information for students.
 An Honorlock usage webinar was conducted on November 17, recorded for faculty
who could not attend.
 Brian St. Amour is tasked with creating and leading a committee to re-evaluate current
solution and conduct a second round of vendor reviews with faculty involvement.
Turnitin
A Turnitin GradeMark usage webinar was conducted on new version 2 integration on
November 18, recorded for faculty who could not attend, and a reminder email was sent to
faculty regarding how to set up new integration each semester.
VidGrid
Contract renewal for $6,000 in December
Business and Continuing Education (BCE)
 Enrolled learners in CMA Module 4: Pharmacology, scheduled to begin January 11.


Continuing with manual course shell builds and enrollments for SP2021 and SU2021
courses as requested.

Student Success
eLearning Workshop for Students
 eLearning is defining requirements and processes for the eLearning Workshop code
flag when students apply to Temple College. We need to minimize manual work and
any possible obstructions to student course registrations.
Open Education Resources (OER)
eLearning is continuing to monitor OER information received from vendors to compile listing
to present information on curricular and technology options.
Quality Enhancement Plan (QEP)
Faculty Training and Online Course Quality for 8-week courses
eLearning is continuing to assist faculty as needed with online class development, software
integrations, troubleshooting and D2L functionality to support our 8-week course offerings.
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East Williamson County Higher Education Centers
Staff at both Taylor and Hutto have been busy assisting students with registration,
enrollment, and orientation for the spring 2021 semester. Much of this work has been done
virtually, but students are still assisted in person as well. In addition, the EWCHEC staff do an
amazing job of supporting their local communities and were able to get involved during
December through a variety of ways.


Taylor Office staff worked hard to make sure our EWCHEC area students who have
food insecurities were able to stock up on items prior to the holiday break utilizing the
food pantry at the Taylor Center.



EWCHEC-Hutto took part in giving back to the community by participating in Hutto’s
Annual Orange Santa. This year looked a little different, so in lieu of our normal book
drive, the Center participated in collecting toys for the area children.

Business and Continuing Education (BCE) classes will begin at the Taylor Center in January
2021, offering programs in Clinical Medical Assistant (CMA), Electrocardiography Technician
(EKG), Medical Billing and Coding, and Phlebotomy Technician. Conversations will continue
with Taylor ISD and Baylor Scott and White in Taylor on partnership opportunities for these
health care programs and shared simulation and training spaces.
INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS
Quality Enhancement Plan (QEP) Focus to Finish


Extracted, analyzed, and shared data with QEP committee to support the Temple
College Quality Enhancement Plan

Program Reviews


Program Review for Visual Arts, December 2, 2020



The Program Review for Music is February 3, and preparations are underway now.

Community College Survey of Student Engagement (CCSSE)


Registered for the Community College Survey of Student Engagement. Due to
COVID-19, this will be the first time that the College has participated in the online
version of the survey. The survey will go live in mid-semester for randomly-selected
student participants.

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) Developmental Education Program
Survey (DEPS)


Extract and analyze data for the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board’s
Developmental Education Program Survey.



Work in cooperation with other departments, such as development Math,
developmental reading and writing, advising, and testing.

Grants
Reskilling Workforce Data Request
List of all TC students who did not graduate, but have dropped/stopped out of TC in the last
five years.
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Planning and Processes


Zogotech Issue with grade distribution

In running a grade report for Dr. Locklin, staff discovered Zogotech had over 500 students
with a grade of "other". The problem ended up being a timing/download issue. Our server at
TC for Zogotech malfunctioned over the break. We also think the grades may not have been
"finalized" and caused this error.


Faculty and Staff Resource Guide Resource for employees to access college and
state data.



Update NSC Transfer Status in Zogotech

This is a manual process. IREP staff discovered during the Reskilling Workforce Grant data
pull that the NSC import had not been done since 2019. We are creating an upload calendar,
so this happens regularly.
Adhoc Data Requests
o Grade distribution for fall 2020 Biology courses. Compare both - week terms
and 16-week term grades.
o BCP Data Request-Requested data as was produced for departments in
December, with success rates, ethnicity, etc.
o Brazosport College Data Request -Requested five years of graduated student
data (2015-20). Sent the request to Laura Hutchens for approval.
o Fall 2019 Biology Grade Distribution-Dr. Locklin asked for 2019 as a follow-up
to his fall 2020 grade distribution request.
o Data for Welcome Week Presenter-Basic data for Welcome Week speaker on
January 11.
Assessment
Weave Completion Certificates-create and email completion certificates for all who completed
Weave training.
STUDENT ENROLLMENT SERVICES
General Information
The Student Enrollment Services team is currently registering spring 2021 classes.
Registration for spring classes started October 26, 2020 for priority and November 2, 2020 for
regular registration. The last day of registration for 16-week and 1st 8-week classes is
January 15, 2021.
Advising Center
Academic Advisors Mr. Derrick Webb, Ms. Hattrice Freeman, Ms. Alexz Siprian, Ms. Laura
Rodriguez, and Director Ms. Mandy Hart have been assisting students enroll and approving
courses on self-service for Spring 2021. Office Assistant, Ms. Kaci Robinson has been
providing students with directions on using their self-service and assigning advisors to
approve students Spring 2021 courses on self-service.
Director, Ms. Mandy Hart created a Zoom recording of how to use self-service that was
added on the advising website for students to access.
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Over the winter break, Advising intermittently answered email and approved over 200
students on self-service, so they could register for spring 2021.
Adult Education and Literacy (AEL)
Mr. Jay Ruiz, Interim Director of Adult Education and Literacy continues to fill the role of
interim Director and Career Navigator. The Associate Director, Mr. Skinner is transitioning to
take on more of the director roles. The goal is to grow this area, Career Navigation, to serve
the approximate 1,000 student population with services as modeled in the current Career
Pathways program.
Texas Workforce Commission rolled out the program year targets four months later than
usual. TC AEL saw an increase in target expectations despite a statewide drop in overall
enrollments of nearly half. This target increase was due to population growth in Bell and
Milam counties, primarily in West Bell County. Mr. Ruiz negotiated a lower target in the area
that covers services for re-entry services given the shutting down of all Bell County Jail
access due to COVID. The overall numbers still remain, and TC AEL is working diligently to
increase enrollments, particularly using our sub-grantee (CTC) and contracted partners
(Heart of Texas Goodwill).
Texas AEL enrollment averages stand at 55% over the prior year, TC AEL is approximately
at 53%. TC AEL staff worked throughout the holiday break to accommodate students
interested in enrolling. Despite our efforts, we anticipate enrollment of approximately 40
students in January, a month that historically has double that number.
Admissions and Records
In December 2020, Admissions and Records has processed 359 applications for admissions.
All applicants were emailed acceptance notifications. The acceptance email notifies
prospective and returning students of the necessary steps to registration, email addresses to
various departments at Temple College, as well as the availability of other services.
Admissions and Records entered 2,197 transcripts in students’ records. Admissions and
Records uses information from external transcripts for testing and course evaluations so that
students can register for classes, receive an accurate degree plan, and apply for graduation.
Admissions and Records has issued 202 degrees and/or certificates for fall 2020.
Admissions and Records processed end of term reports, which included processing grades,
identifying, verifying and processing graduates, and sending transcripts, identifying core
completers, updating class level, assigning academic standings, identifying honor students as
well as other end-of-term and state reports.
Leopard Food Pantry
Dr. Christine Simon reports, The Leopard Food Pantry use continues to increase each
month. For November and December, over 200 individual students and staff visited the food
pantry at Temple and Taylor. This number includes students who visited more than once. The
food pantry now has frozen meats, fresh fruit and vegetables, flour, oil, milk, and cheese.
Number of students served November and December 2020:
o Rent & housing assistance – 2 (referred to community resources)
o Transportation (gas for car) – 1 (1-Emergency aid, 1-gift card donated)
o Childcare – 2 (referred to workforce)
o Laptops – 6 distributed. (0 remaining)
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o Mental health counseling referrals – 1
o Other (prescriptions, glasses, utility bills, etc.) – 3 (utility bills)
The food pantry purchased turkeys from HEB for the Thanksgiving holiday to distribute to
students.
Central Texas Food Bank monthly community mobile food bank will be Saturday, January 16,
2021.
Financial Aid
Ms. Mary Daniel, Director of Financial Aid, reports for 2020- 2021, 1,688 students at Temple
College received Pell grants for a total disbursed amount of $3,623,697.78, and 1,061
learners received Direct Loans for a total disbursed amount of $3,670,032.00.
To date, 6,913 students have listed Temple College on their Free Application for Federal
Student Aid (FASFA) for 20-21.
Recruiting
Mr. Michael Pilgrim, Coordinator of Recruitment Programs reports we are not doing live
campus tours due to COVID-19. For students who request a tour, recruiting has a simple
online tour students may visit. Live campus tours will begin again when state and campus
officials deem it is safe to return to school.
Recruiting has been working with Dual Credit, Financial Aid, and Admissions and Records
visiting with district high school students to discuss college after graduation. We have let
high schools know we can meet them in any manner they feel comfortable, online or in
person.
According to Recruit Records in December, Temple College received 614 applications for
spring 2021. All prospective spring 2021 students have been and will be sent reminders
about spring 2021 registration through Thursday January 14, 2021.
Students get a welcome letter automatically through Recruit when they complete their
application. Students who complete their FASFA but have not completed their Temple
College Application will continue to get an email with instructions on how to complete the
process through registration.
Retention
Mr. Adrian Sora, Director of Student Retention, reports that he is finalizing fall 2020 actions in
CRM Advise and ready to move into spring 2021. On Friday, January 8, 2021, there will be
an email going out to all fall 2020 students who have not registered for spring 2021 to
encourage them to get registered before January 15, 2021.
The spring 2021 communication plan will roll out on Monday, January 11, 2021. Mr. Sora
reports that he is working to give additional departments the ability to send text messages to
their students.
Mr. Sora reports that he has approved 67 students to return to Temple College and students
who completed last Fall on academic suspension. He also reports that he is still receiving
suspension appeals every day, so this number will improve.
Mr. Sora reports that the online New Student Orientation is still operational, and students
have been completing the orientation video and quiz
Mr. Sora reports that he has approved five students for Title IX for the spring 2021 semester.
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Testing Center
The Testing Center accommodated all requested testing for the month of December while
maintaining cleanliness and social-distancing protocols. This included:
•

Final exams for all requested students with documented disabilities.

•

Make-up exams as needed for all students, which have extended into January.

•

HESI/TEAS/ TSIA testing at both Temple and Hutto locations.

•

CLEP tests

•

Certiport examinations for Temple College students and staff.

•

Remote TSIA testing four days per week.

•

ACT national testing December 12 at the Academic Center

•

Police Academy TCOLE exam for 16 students, which took place December 31.

Additionally, Testing is preparing to launch the new TSIA2 on January 11, 2021.
Writing Center
Dr. Wes Wellborn, Writing Center Coordinator reports the Writing Center wrapped up a
successful fall semester and is preparing for the spring. While there have been fewer
students utilizing our face-to-face consultations, requests for assistance through distance
technology have increased significantly. Face-to-face appointments are still available and are
provided with social distance measures and low capacity limits.
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AGENDA ITEM 8-D

Temple College Foundation Report

Staff Recommendation: No Action Required

Dr. Evelyn Waiwaiole, Vice President Development and Executive Director of the
Temple College Foundation, will report on Foundation activities at the meeting.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of Temple College as of August 31, 2020 and 2019, and the respective
changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents and the Schedule of College’s
Share of Net Pension Liability, Schedule of College Contributions, the Schedule of College’s Share
of Net OPEB Liability, and the Schedule of College’s Contributions for OPEB as listed in the table
of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements. The supplemental schedules
(schedules A through D) and statistical supplements, as described in the table of contents, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (schedule E) and schedule
of expenditures of state awards (schedule F) are presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements. 66
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The supplemental schedules, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of
expenditures of state awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
28, 2020, on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Temple, Texas
December 28, 2020
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TEMPLE COLLEGE
Management’s Discussion and Analysis Exhibit,
Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2020
This discussion and analysis of Temple College financial statements provides an overview of
College financial activities for the year ended August 31, 2020. Management has prepared the
financial statements and the related footnote disclosures and this discussion and analysis statement.
Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information is that of the College
management. The current report, for the year ended August 31, 2020, is issued under the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial
Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.” This
accounting policy established the reporting format for governmental annual financial statements.
The State of Texas elected to adopt these reporting standards in the fiscal year 2001-2002, and
Temple College as a component unit of state government converted its financial reporting to the
GASB 34 format. The following sections present comparative financial data as called for by the
reporting principle.
Financial and Enrollment Highlights
 Enrollment in the academic/technical programs remained almost unchanged compared to the
prior year, decreasing from 96,210 semester hours to 96,065 hours.
 Enrollment in the Business and Continuing Education Division declined 26.7% compared to
FY 2019.
 Tuition/Fee totals by resident type for this period were:

In-District
Out-of-District
Non-Resident

Fall 2019
Fall 2018
$101/semester hour $99/semester hour
$175/semester hour $172/semester hour
$337/semester hour $252/semester hour

Fall 2017
$97/semester hour
$169/semester hour
$249/semester hour

 Students taking Health Science courses are charged an additional $20/SCH. This tuition is a
19.8% increase for Health Science programs for resident students compared to general
academic and other technical courses.
 The district property tax rate for FY 2020 decreased from the prior year’s rate of
$0.19795/$100 to $0.1886/$100. This rate is the combined debt/maintenance and operations
rate.
 State funding (appropriations) decreased less than 1% in FY 2020, which is the first year of
the biennium.
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The Annual Report
This report consists of three basic financial statements: (1) the Statement of Net Position; (2) the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and (3) the Statement of Cash
Flows. These three statements provide information on the College as a whole (excluding the
Temple College Foundation activities) and present a long-term view of the financial position of
the College. One of the most important questions asked about finances is, “Is Temple College as
a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information on total
institution activities in a way that helps to answer this question. When revenues and other support
exceed expenses, the result is an increase in net position. When the reverse occurs, the result is a
decrease in net position. The relationship between revenues and expenses can be thought of as
Temple College’s operating results.
These two statements report the College’s net position and the changes in net position. The
difference between assets and liabilities is one way to measure the financial health or financial
position of Temple College. Over time, an increase or decrease in the College net position is one
indicator of whether its financial health is improving. However, several non-financial factors are
relevant as well, such as the trend and quality of applicants, freshman class size, student retention,
faculty use of technology, building condition, campus safety, and quality of student services, to
completely assess the overall health of the College.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is
similar to the accounting method used by most private-sector institutions. All current year revenues
and expenses are reflected regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Financial statements for the College’s component unit, the Temple College Foundation, are issued
independent to those of the College but are presented with the College’s basic financial statements.
Statement of Net Position
Cash and short-term investment balances increased compared to the prior year.
Receivables include delinquent property taxes, student accounts, Federal, State, and other
miscellaneous receivables. Federal and State receivables decreased by 49%, due mainly to better
timing of student aid drawdowns from the Department of Education. Student receivables increased
by less than 1%. Other receivables increased by less than 1%.
Prepaid expenses (expenses related to next fiscal year) decreased by approximately 100%, due to
better scheduling of payments in the current fiscal year.
Non-Current Assets include Restricted Cash balances and Other Long-Term Investments. Other
Long-Term Investments decreased 119% compared to the prior year, mainly due to maturity of
Certificate of Deposits.
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NET POSITIONS, END OF YEAR
(In Millions)
Temple College

Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

8/31/2020
25.9
46.0
71.9

8/31/2019
24.5
48.7
73.2

8/31/2018
24.3
51.1
75.4

Deferred Outflows

7.0

6.0

2.0

Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

12.8
49.9
62.7

11.5
49.0
60.5

11.3
50.7
62.0

Deferred Inflows

6.4

8.9

6.4

21.1
3.2
(14.5)
9.8

19.2
3
(12.4)
9.8

17.4
2.9
(11.3)
9.0

0.0

0.8

0.4

Net Positions:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Positions
Increase in Net Positions

As a direct result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75, the College no longer has a
positive unrestricted net position.
Compensable absences (vacation/sick leave) decreased slightly this year to $890,918 and is a
material liability to the College.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the annual operating
results for the College, as well as all non-operating revenues and expenses. Tuition and fee
revenue, net of exemption allowances, decreased by 14.4% in FY 2020. Tuition rates for students
increased over the previous year. A significant portion of the tuition structure is a $13 per SCH
use fee. This charge is restricted for payment of debt service costs related to revenue bonds for
facility construction and improvements on campus.
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State allocations (appropriations) for instructional and support purposes decreased by less than 1%
in FY20, which is the first year of the biennium; as mentioned in previous financial reports, ten
percent (10%) of community college funding is now based upon student success points, a type of
performance-based funding. As the state legislature moves forward with the evolution of student
success points, the College will expect an increased emphasis on student performance, as opposed
to headcount enrollment only.
Auxiliary Enterprise revenues consist primarily of commissions from the campus bookstore,
vending sales and athletics. These revenues decreased by 9.2% from the previous year, to
$206,384.
The operating revenue category of Grants and Contracts does not include Title IV Grants, but does
include CARES Act funding. These Federal grant programs increased by 105% from the previous
fiscal year.
Title IV revenue is included in the Non-Operating Revenue section and decreased by 1.0% for FY
2020.
Operating Expenses
Below is a comparison chart of expenses arranged by the natural classification categories:
OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION
(In Millions)
Temple College
Year Ended
8/31/2020

Year Ended
8/31/2019

Year Ended
8/31/2018

Operating Expenses
Salaries:
Faculty
Staff
Benefits
Other Expenses
Depreciation

10.2
8.8
8.1
13.6
1.5

9.4
8.8
6.3
14.9
1.5

8.9
8.8
6.2
13.5
1.6

Total Operating Expenses

42.2

40.9

39.0
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Operating expenses by functional area are shown in the following schedule:
OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
(In Millions)
Temple College
Year Ended
8/31/2020

Year Ended
8/31/2019

Year Ended
8/31/2018

Educational & General
Instruction
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operations & Plant Maintenance
Student Aid

15.1
1.6
2.5
3.6
7.8
3.1
5.6

14.0
1.2
2.3
3.7
7.3
3.1
6.4

13.5
1.0
2.6
3.5
6.7
3.3
5.4

Total Educational Activities

39.3

38.0

36.0

Auxiliary Enterprises
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

1.4
1.5
42.2

1.4
1.5
40.9

1.4
1.6
39.0

In the schedules of operating expenses shown above, the total expenditures increased about 3.2%
over the prior year. The bulk of this increase is Instruction, Public Service and Institutional
Support.
Depreciation expense is an accounting requirement of GASB 34 and is intended to show statement
readers the asset loss each year on College facilities and equipment. The goal, of course, is to try
to replace those facility losses with capital additions and deferred maintenance projects to offset
these losses. Temple College, like most other colleges and universities, typically struggles with
facility replacement issues. Fortunately, the College has infused over $30 million in new facilities
and renovations into the campus plant over the past ten years. However, as these projects have
ended and new investments slow, the depreciation cost will once again exceed new plant
investment unless new funding streams are provided. In FY 2020, the college utilized 74% of local
property tax revenue for operations. This may decrease if new GO bonds are approved by voters
and issued by the College in futures years.
All employees received a 2.0% raise in FY 2020. This increase in employee compensation was
critical to maintain morale among employees and enhance the College’s ability to attract and retain
good employees.
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SALARY INCREASES (%)
(Fall Term)
Temple College
2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2.0%

2.0%

2.50%

1.0% to
1.50%

3.0%

2.0%

2.5%

OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
(In Millions)
Temple College

Operating Revenues
Tuition & Fees (net of exemptions)
Grants, Contracts & Other
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Net Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
State Allocations
Maintenance & Obligation Ad Valorem
Taxes
General Obligation Debt Taxes
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Gifts
Interest on Capital Related Debt
Other Non-Operating
Total Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses)
Increase (Decrease in Net Position)
Net Position - Beginning of Year
Net Position - End of Year
Percent Increase/(Decrease)
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Year
Ended
8/31/2020

Year
Ended
8/31/2019

Year
Ended
8/31/2018

9.7
5.7
15.4

11.3
4.4
15.7

9.9
4.1
14.0

42.2
(26.8)

40.9
(25.2)

39.0
(25.0)

10.0

9.6

9.0

6.8
2.4
8.5
0.0
(0.9)
0.0

6.2
2.4
8.6
0.0
(1.0)
0.2

6.0
2.4
9.0
0.0
(1.1)
0.1

26.8

26.0

25.4

0.0
9.8
9.8
0.0%

0.8
9.0
9.8
10.0%

0.4
8.6
9.0
4.6%

TEMPLE COLLEGE

PROPERTY TAX RATES
(per $100 value)
Temple College
Rate/$100 Value
2020
2019
2018
$0.13950
$ 0.14341
$0.1467
$0.04910
$ 0.05454
0.0580
$0.18860
$ 0.19795
$0.2047

Maintenance
Debt Service
Total

The net assessed valuation for the district increased for FY 2020 to $5,398,631,380 from the
previous year (FY 2019) amount of $4,873,065,928. The property tax rate cap for the Temple
College district is $0.25/$100 valuation. This is the maximum permissible rate for both debt
service requirements and operations combined.
Statement of Cash Flows
Another way to assess the health of an institution is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows. Its
primary purpose is to provide relevant information about cash receipts and cash payments of an
entity during a period. The Statement of Cash Flows also helps users assess:
 an entity’s ability to generate future net cash flows;
 its ability to meet its obligations as they come due; and
 its needs for external financing.
The College liquidity position increased $1,126,101 during this year ended August 31, 2020, as
shown in the chart below:
CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR
(In Millions)
Temple College
Year
Ended
8/31/2020

Year
Ended
8/31/2019

Year
Ended
8/31/2018

(20.5)
24.7
(4.3)
1.2

(21.3)
24.4
(4.4)
1.6

(20.4)
24.4
(4.7)
(0.5)

1.1

0.3

(1.2)

Cash, beginning of the year

2.2

1.9

3.1

Cash, end of the year

3.3

2.2

1.9

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities
Non-capital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing activities
Net Increase (decrease) in cash
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration
On August 31, 2020, the College had $70.5 million invested in capital assets, net of approximately
$28.5 million in accumulated depreciation.
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF DEPRECIATION
(In Millions)
TEMPLE COLLEGE

Land
Buildings
Land Improvements
Construction in Progress
Furniture & Equipment
Library Materials
Totals

Year Ended
8/31/2020
$
3.8
33.2
4.1
0.7
0.2

Year Ended
8/31/2019
$
3.8
34.0
4.4
0.8
0.2

Year Ended
8/31/2018
$
3.8
34.5
4.8
1.0
0.2

$

$

$

42.0

43.2

44.3

At year-end 2020, Temple College had approximately $21.4 million in debt outstanding, a $3.2
million decrease from the prior year-end balance of $24.6 million. The table below summarizes
this amount by debt type.
OUTSTANDING DEBT, AT YEAR-END
Temple College

Bonds/Capital Leases
Revenue Bonds
General Obligation Bonds
Capital Leases
TOTAL BONDS/LEASES

8/31/2020

8/31/2019

8/31/2018

$ 7,050,000
13,315,000
1,091,930

$ 8,395,000
14,860,000
1,371,085

$ 9,695,000
16,345,000
1,623,306

$ 21,456,930

$ 24,626,085

$ 27,663,306

During FY 2020, all scheduled debt service requirements were paid.
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On April 10, 2020, the College closed on the sale of Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020,
with a par amount of $8,900,000. The bonds were sold at par, and sold with a coupon of 1.12%.
The proceeds of the issue were used to call the Series 2010 GO debt on July 1, 2020, which
matches the original maturity date of the Series 2010 bonds. The refunding generated a net
present value savings to the College of $1,422,937.
Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future
COVID-19 brought with it enormous challenges for higher education and the state of Texas.
Thus far, Temple College has fared relatively well. Enrollment remained constant despite the
shift to a predominantly online course delivery model beginning in the Summer of 2020. That
model is anticipated to remain in place at least through Spring 2021. The local real estate market
continues to experience healthy growth in both new construction and values, providing a stable
ad valorem revenue stream.
There is uncertainty regarding what actions the will be taken in the upcoming 87th Legislative
Session. COVID-19 negatively affected sales tax receipts for the state of Texas, and low oil and
gas prices have put downward pressure on the State’s revenue streams derived from that
important industry. Texas Community Colleges are cautiously optimistic that current state
funding levels may be preserved, but the risk of a reduction in state appropriations for the next
biennium is a concern.
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Exhibit 1

Statement of Net Position
August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019
2019

2020
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short Term Investments
Accounts Receivable (net)
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

$

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Long-Term Investments
Capital Assets (net)(See note 6)
Total Non-Current Assets

1,255,121
19,285,547
5,390,806
25,931,474

$

2,035,340
2,048,904
41,938,375
46,022,619

Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB

1,135,862
17,806,303
5,522,106
7,523
24,471,794

1,028,498
4,494,000
43,191,846
48,714,344

$

71,954,093

$

73,186,138

$

3,348,288
3,645,753
6,994,041

$

3,474,794
2,486,192
5,960,986

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Funds Held for Others
Capital Leases - Current Portion
Bonds Payable - Current Portion
Net OPEB Liability - Current Portion
Total Current Liabilities

1,434,076
6,397,209
915,875
154,626
3,100,000
782,668
12,784,454

686,780
6,660,332
799,470
252,221
2,890,000
290,285
11,579,088

Non-Current Liabilities
Accrued Compensable Absences
Capital Leases
Bonds Payable
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total Non-Current Liabilities

890,918
937,304
17,265,000
6,905,246
23,911,552
49,910,020

897,896
1,118,864
20,365,000
7,035,912
19,443,810
48,861,482

Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to OPEB

$

62,694,474

$

60,440,570

$

1,815,026
4,602,826
6,417,852

$

1,225,406
7,638,359
8,863,765

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Captial Assets
Restricted for:
Non-expendable
Student Aid
Expendable
Loan
Debt Service
Unrestricted

21,116,382

19,263,059

144,237
-

42,928

17,226
3,078,185
(14,520,222)

Total Net Position (Schedule D)

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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9,835,808

25,491
2,910,544
(12,399,233)
$

9,842,789

Temple Junior College Foundation, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position
August 31, 2019

Exhibit 1-A

2019
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Investments restricted
Short-term note receivable, less allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $103,908
Unconditional promises to give, less allowance for uncollectible
promises of $32,929
Total Current Assets

$

866,434
26,460
69,489
60,209
11,204
1,033,796

Endowment Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total Endowment Investments

63,567
6,159,191
6,222,758

Buildings, furniture, and equipment, net

-

Long-term unconditional promises to give, less allowance
for uncollectible promises of $0 and $0
Investment in real estate
Total Assets

329,582
$

7,586,136

$

35,072
17,796
52,868

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued vacation payable
Total Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities:
Notes/Promissory note
Total Liabilities

52,868

Net Assets:
Without Donor Restrictions:
Operating
Fixed assets
Total Without Donor Restrictions

1,241,021
1,241,021

With Donor Restrictions
Total Net Assets

6,292,247
7,533,268

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$
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Exhibit 2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019
2020
Operating Revenues
Tuition and Fees (Net of Allowances and Discounts $6,498,750
and $5,014,028, respectively)
Federal Grants and Contracts
State Grants and Contracts
Private Gifts, Grants, and Contracts
Sales and Services of Educational Activities
Auxiliary Enterprises
Other Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues (Schedule A)

$

Operating Expenses
Instruction
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses (Schedule B)
Operating Loss
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
State Appropriations
Maintenance Ad Valorem Taxes
Debt Service Ad Valorem Taxes
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Gifts
Investment Income
Interest on Capital Related Debt
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Other Non-Operating Revenues
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (Schedule C)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

2019

9,685,037
2,242,390
417,007
2,154,789
1,000
206,384
743,057
15,449,664

$ 11,316,689
1,091,545
490,989
1,824,383
10,915
227,681
736,644
15,698,846

15,056,069
1,569,300
2,502,537
3,596,415
7,845,339
3,064,646
5,634,879
1,459,730
1,472,022
42,200,937

13,944,945
1,233,568
2,305,565
3,635,061
7,326,305
3,122,531
6,369,528
1,437,451
1,503,943
40,878,897

(26,751,273)

(25,180,051)

9,960,197
6,763,995
2,370,899
8,550,309
5,000
203,116
(896,298)
(2,652)
(210,274)
26,744,292

9,593,290
6,243,498
2,364,719
8,622,962
288,290
(981,223)
(13,557)
(88,556)
26,029,423

(6,981)

Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Year
Cummulative effect of change in accounting principle
Net Position - End of Year

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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9,842,789
9,835,808

849,372

$

8,993,417
9,842,789

Temple Junior College Foundation, Inc.
Statement of Activities
Year Ended August 31, 2019

Exhibit 2-A

Without Donor
Restrictions
Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Contributions
Special events
Interest and dividends
Gain/(loss) on Sale of Assets
Unrealized gain/(losses)
Other Income
Assets released from restrictions

$

74,474
940
365
412
71,487
217,581

Total revenues, gains and other support

With Donor
Restrictions

$

206,696
58,924
196,644
(15,574)
(69,812)
212
(217,581)

Total

$

281,170
58,924
197,584
(15,209)
(69,400)
71,699
-

365,259

159,509

524,768

163,397
-

50,584

163,397
50,584

163,397

50,584

213,981

Administration
Other Expenses

257,707
62,358

-

257,707
62,358

Total expenses and losses

483,462

50,584

534,046

(118,203)

108,925

Expenses and Losses
Programs:
Scholarship Awards
Special events
Total programs

Change in net assets
Net assets as of beginning of year
Net assets as of end of year

1,359,224
$

1,241,021
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(9,278)

6,183,322
$

6,292,247

7,542,546
$

7,533,268

Temple College

Exhibit 3

Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019
2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from students and other customers
Receipts from grants and contracts
Payments to or on behalf of employees
Payments to suppliers for goods or services
Payments for scholarships or fellowships

$

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from state appropriations
Receipts from non-operating federal revenue
Receipts from ad valorem taxes
Gifts
Other Payments
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

9,688,217
5,662,108
(23,116,699)
(7,185,412)
(5,550,958)

2019
$

11,778,059
4,144,004
(22,145,265)
(8,744,148)
(6,362,257)

(20,502,744)

(21,329,607)

7,266,604
8,550,309
9,134,894
5,000
(210,274)

7,269,783
8,622,962
8,608,217
(88,556)

24,746,533

24,412,406

(221,202)
(3,169,155)
(896,298)

(375,709)
(3,037,221)
(981,223)

(4,286,656)

(4,394,153)

203,116
(15,088,864)
16,054,716

288,290
(29,165,186)
30,506,177

1,168,968

1,629,281

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

1,126,101

317,927

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year

2,164,360

1,846,433

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of capital debt
Purchase of capital assets
Payments on capital debt and leases - principal
Payments on capital debt and leases - interest
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from intetrest on investments
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from the sale and maturities of investments
Net cash provided by financing activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash used by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Payments made directly by the state for benefits
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Deferred outflow
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Funds held for others
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Accrued liabilities
Deferred inflow
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

3,290,461

$

2,164,360

$

(26,751,273)

$

(25,180,051)

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1,472,022
2,693,593

1,503,943
2,323,507

131,300
(1,033,055)
7,523
747,296
116,405
(263,123)
(6,978)
4,829,459
(2,445,913)

105,620
(3,963,145)
2,285
(172,326)
41,179
83,689
18,237
1,462,878
2,444,577

(20,502,744)

$

(21,329,607)

Temple College
Notes to the Financial Statements
August 31, 2020
1.

Reporting Entity

Temple Junior College District was established in 1926, in accordance with the laws of the State
of Texas, to serve the educational needs of Temple and the surrounding communities. On April 22,
1996, the name of the Temple Junior College District was changed to Temple College. The College
has a campus in Temple, Texas, Taylor, Texas and Hutto, Texas. Temple College is considered to
be a special purpose, primary government according to the definition in Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14. While the College receives funding from local, state, and
federal sources, and must comply with the spending, reporting, and record keeping requirements
of these entities, it is not a component unit of any other governmental entity.
2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Guidelines
The significant accounting policies followed by the College in preparing these financial statements
are in accordance with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board’s Annual Financial
Reporting Requirements for Texas Public Community and Junior Colleges and in accordance with
generally accepted accounting policies. The College applies all applicable GASB pronouncements
and all applicable Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) statements and interpretations
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements.
The College has elected not to apply FASB guidance issued subsequent to November 30, 1989,
unless specifically adopted by the GASB. The College is reported as a special-purpose government
engaged in business-type activities.
Tuition Discounting
Texas Public Education Grants
Certain tuition amounts are required to be set aside for use as scholarships by qualifying students.
This set aside, called the Texas Public Education Grant (TPEG), is shown with tuition and fee
revenue amounts as a separate set aside amount (Texas Education Code 56.0333). When the award
is used by the student for tuition and fees, the amount is recorded as a tuition discount. If the
amount is dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.
Title IV, HEA, Program Funds
Certain Title IV HEA Program funds are received by the college to pass through to the student.
These funds are initially received by the College and recorded as revenue. When the award is used
by the student for tuition and fees, the amount is recorded as a tuition discount. If the amount is
dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.
Other Tuition Discounts
The College awards tuition and fee scholarships from institutional funds to students who qualify.
When these amounts are used for tuition and fees, the amount is recorded as a tuition discount. If
the amount is dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.
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Temple College
Notes to the Financial Statements
August 31, 2020
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the College have been prepared on the accrual basis whereby all
revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they have been reduced to
a legal or contractual obligation to pay.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
expenditures of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation,
is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration. Under Texas law, appropriations
lapse at August 31, and encumbrances outstanding at that time are to be either canceled or
appropriately provided for in the subsequent year’s budget. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end
that are provided for in subsequent year’s budget are reported as designations of net assets since
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.
Budgetary Data
Each community college district in Texas is required by law to prepare an annual operating budget
of anticipated revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year beginning September 1. The College’s
Board of Trustees adopts the budget, which is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. A copy
of the approved budget must be filed with the Texas Higher Education Coordination Board,
Legislative Budget Board, Legislative Reference Library, and Governor’s Office of Budget and
Planning by December 1st.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The College’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and
short term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Deferred Inflows
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Governments are only permitted
to report deferred inflows in circumstances specifically authorized by the GASB.
Deferred Outflows
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that time. Governments are only permitted
to report deferred outflows in circumstances specifically authorized by the GASB.
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Temple College
Notes to the Financial Statements
August 31, 2020
Investments
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and External Investment Pools, investments are reported at fair value. Fair values are
based on published market rates. Short-term investments have an original maturity greater than
three months but less than one year at time of purchase. The governing board has designated public
fund investment pools to be short-term investments. Long-term investments have an original
maturity of greater than one year at the time of purchase.
Capital Assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the date of donation.
For equipment, the College’s capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or
more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are charged to
operating expense in the year in which the expense is incurred. Depreciation is computed using the
straight–line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets applying the half-year convention.
The following lives are used:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Library Books
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles, and Other Equipment
Telecommunications and Peripheral Equipment

50 years
20 years
15 years
10-15 years
5 years

Unearned Revenue
Tuition and fees of $6,397,209 and $6,660,332 have been reported as unearned revenues at August
31, 2020 and August 31, 2019, respectively.
Pensions
The College participates in the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) pension plan, a
multiple-employer cost sharing defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation. The
fiduciary net position of TRS has been determined on the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions,
pension expense, and information about assets, liabilities, and additions to/deductions from TRS’s
fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

85

21

Temple College
Notes to the Financial Statements
August 31, 2020
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
The fiduciary net position of the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS) State Retiree
Health Plan (SRHP) has been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus
and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes, for purposes of measuring the net OPEB
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits; OPEB expense; and information about assets, liabilities and additions
to/deductions from SRHP’s fiduciary net position. Benefit payments are recognized when due and
are payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Operating and Non-Operating Revenue and Expense Policy
The College distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the College’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are tuition and related fees. The
major non-operating revenues are state appropriations and property tax collections. Operating
expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. The operation of the bookstore and food service is not performed by the College.
3.

Authorized Investments

Temple College is authorized to invest in obligations and instruments as defined in the Public Funds
Investment Act (Sec. 2256.001 Texas Government Code). Such investments include (1)
obligations of the United States or its agencies, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its
agencies, (3) obligations of political subdivisions rated not less than A by a national investment
rating firm, (4) certificates of deposit, and (5) other instruments and obligations authorized by
statute. The Board of Trustees of Temple College has adopted a written investment policy regarding
the investment of its funds as defined in the Public Funds Investment Act of 1995 (Chapter 2256,
Texas Government Code). The investments of the College are in compliance with the Trustee’s
investment policies.
4.

Deposits and Investments

Cash and Deposits included in Exhibit 1, Statement of Net Position, consists of the items reported
below:
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Cash and Deposits
Bank Deposits
Demand Deposits
Time Deposits
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Petty Cash on Hand
Reimbursements in Transit

2020
$ 3,286,654
$ 3,286,654

2019
$ 2,160,553
$ 2,160,553

$

$

$
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

3,807
3,807

$ 3,290,461

3,807
3,807

$

$ 2,164,360

Reconciliation of Deposits and Investments to Exhibit 1
Market Value
August 31, 2020

Market Value
August 31, 2019

$

3,290,461

$

2,164,360

CD's
BBVA Compass Money Market
MBS Money Market
Tex Pool
Texas Class
Total Investments

$

2,048,905
20,000
20,632
2,074
19,242,840
21,334,451

$

4,494,000
20,000
2,040
17,784,263
22,300,303

TOTAL DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

$

24,624,912

$

24,464,663

Type of Security
Total Cash and Deposits

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Exhibit 1)
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents(Exhibit 1)
Short Term Investments (Exhibit 1)
Other Long Term Investments (Exhibit 1)

1,255,121
2,035,340
19,285,547
2,048,904
$

TOTAL DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
(Exhibit 1)
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1,135,862
1,028,498
17,806,303
4,494,000
$

24,464,663
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As of August 31, 2020, the College had the following investments and maturities:
Investment Type
Money Market Account
Investment Pool
Certificate of Deposit
Total Fair Value

Fair Value
40,632
19,244,914
2,048,905
$ 21,334,451

Less than 1
40,632
19,244,914
2,048,905
$ 21,334,451

1 to 2
-

$

Greater than 2
-

$

-

N/A

$ -

As of August 31, 2019, the College had the following investments and maturities:
Investment Type
Money Market Account
Investment Pool
Certificate of Deposit
Total Fair Value

Fair Value
20,000
17,786,303
4,494,000
$ 22,300,303

Less than 1
20,000
17,786,303
2,500,000
$ 20,306,303

1 to 2

$

1,994,000
1,994,000

Greater than 2
-

$

-

N/A

$ -

The governing board has designated public fund investment pools comprised of $19,244,914 and
$17,786,303 at August 31, 2020, and August 31, 2019, respectively, to be short-term
investments.
Interest Rate Risk – In accordance with state law and College policy, the College does not
purchase any investments with maturities greater than two years.
Credit Risk – In accordance with state law and the College’s investment policy, investments in
mutual funds and investment pools must be rated at least AAA, commercial paper must be rated
at least A-1 or P-1, and investments in obligations from other states, municipalities, counties, etc.
must be rated at least A.
Concentration of Credit Risk – The College does not place a limit on the amount the College
may invest in any one issuer. No individual issuer exceeds 5% of the College’s investments.
5.

Derivatives

None.
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6.

Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year end August 31, 2020 was as follows:
Balance
9/1/2019
Not Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Process
Total Not Depreciated

$ 3,793,005
-

Increases

Decreases

$

$

-

Balance
8/31/2020

-

$ 3,793,005
-

3,793,005

-

-

3,793,005

47,908,901
9,723,571
1,732,138

12,991

15,658

47,908,901
9,723,571
1,729,471

2,491,416

208,211

-

2,699,627

4,624,640

-

-

4,624,640

66,480,666

221,202

15,658

66,686,210

13,925,830
5,323,621
1,506,949

831,857
353,722
28,600

13,007

14,757,687
5,677,343
1,522,542

1,835,537

154,712

-

1,990,249

4,489,888

103,131

-

4,593,019

Total Accumulated Depreciation

$27,081,825

$ 1,472,022

$

13,007

$ 28,540,840

Net Other Capital Assets

$39,398,841

$ (1,250,820)

$

2,651

$ 38,145,370

Net Capital Assets

$43,191,846

$ (1,250,820)

$

2,651

$ 41,938,375

Buildings and Other Capital Assets:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Library Books
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles,
And Other Equipment
Telecommunications and
Peripheral Equipment
Total Buildings and
Other Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Library Books
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles,
And Other Equipment
Telecommunications and
Peripheral Equipment
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Capital assets activity for the year ended August 31, 2019, was as follows:
Balance
9/1/2018
Not Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Process
Total Not Depreciated

$ 3,793,005
-

Increases

$ 3,793,005
-

-

-

3,793,005

256,173
13,838

158,207

47,908,901
9,723,571
1,732,138

69,232

17,759

2,491,416

36,466

-

4,624,640

66,280,923

375,709

175,966

66,480,666

13,096,279
4,947,321
1,622,691

829,551
376,300
28,908

144,650

13,925,830
5,323,621
1,506,949

1,702,586

150,710

17,759

1,835,537

4,371,414

118,474

-

4,489,888

Total Accumulated Depreciation

$25,740,291

$ 1,503,943

$ 162,409

$ 27,081,825

Net Other Capital Assets

$40,540,632

$ (1,128,234)

$

13,557

$ 39,398,841

Net Capital Assets

$44,333,637

$ (1,128,234)

$

13,557

$ 43,191,846

Buildings and Other Capital Assets:
Buildings
47,652,728
Land Improvements
9,723,571
Library Books
1,876,507
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles,
And Other Equipment
2,439,943
Telecommunications and
Peripheral Equipment
4,588,174
Total Buildings and
Other Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Library Books
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles,
And Other Equipment
Telecommunications and
Peripheral Equipment
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8/31/2019

-

3,793,005

$
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7.

Long Term Liabilities

Non-current liability activity for the year ended August 31, 2020 was as follows:
Balance
9/1/2019
Bonds
General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Subtotal
Leases
Accrued compensable absences
Net pension liability
OPEB liability
Total long-term liabilities

Additions

Reductions

Balance
8/31/2020

Current
Portion

$

14,860,000
8,395,000
23,255,000

$ 8,900,000
$ 8,900,000

$ 10,445,000
1,345,000
$ 11,790,000

$ 13,315,000
7,050,000
$ 20,365,000

$ 1,715,000
1,385,000
$ 3,100,000

$

1,371,085
897,896
7,035,912
19,734,095
52,293,988

23,927
493,651
5,359,009
$ 14,776,587

279,155
30,905
624,317
398,884
$ 13,123,261

1,091,930
890,918
6,905,246
24,694,220
$ 53,947,314

154,626
782,668
$ 4,037,294

$

Long-term liability activity for the year ended August 31, 2019 was as follows:
Balance
9/1/2018
Bonds
General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Subtotal
Leases
Accrued compensable absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Total long-term liabilities

$

Additions

$

16,345,000
9,695,000
26,040,000

$

-

$

$

1,623,306
879,659
4,214,600
21,092,529
53,850,094

20,443
3,524,308
3,476,548
$ 7,021,299
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Balance
8/31/2019

Current
Portion

$

1,485,000
1,300,000
2,785,000

$ 14,860,000
8,395,000
$ 23,255,000

$ 1,545,000
1,345,000
$ 2,890,000

$

252,221
2,206
702,997
4,834,982
8,577,406

1,371,085
897,896
7,035,912
19,734,095
$ 52,293,988

252,221
290,285
$ 3,432,506

Reductions
$
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8.

Debt and Lease Obligations

For the
Year
Ended

General Obligation Bonds
T otal

Principal

T otal Bonds

Principal

2021

1,715,000

285,241

2,000,241

1,385,000

225,290

1,610,290

3,100,000

510,531

3,610,531

2022

1,760,000

234,033

1,994,033

1,025,000

178,133

1,203,133

2,785,000

412,166

3,197,166

2023

1,240,000

181,136

1,421,136

1,060,000

146,722

1,206,722

2,300,000

327,858

2,627,858

2024

1,265,000

154,092

1,419,092

850,000

114,026

964,026

2,115,000

268,118

2,383,118

2025

1,290,000

126,339

1,416,339

885,000

83,854

968,854

2,175,000

210,193

2,385,193

2026

1,325,000

97,734

1,422,734

350,000

52,398

402,398

1,675,000

150,132

1,825,132

2027-2031

4,720,000

162,861

4,882,861

1,495,000

107,352

1,602,352

6,215,000

270,213

6,485,213

$ 13,315,000

$ 1,241,436

$ 14,556,436

$ 7,050,000

$ 907,775

$ 7,957,775

$ 20,365,000

$ 2,149,211

$ 22,514,211

Total

Interest

Revenue Bonds

August 31,

Interest

T otal

Principal

Interest

Obligations under capital leases at August 31, 2020 were as follows:
Total
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2036
Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interests costs
Present value of minimum lease payments
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$
$

154,626
94,493
94,444
472,788
472,172
283,394
1,571,917
(479,987)
1,091,930

T otal
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Obligations under operating leases at August 31, 2020 were as follows:
Total
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2036
Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interests costs
Present value of minimum lease payments

$
$

1,067,304
758,384
620,765
2,932,364
2,810,587
1,626,656
9,816,060
9,816,060

Temple College leases building space from Texas State Technical College under at noncancellable operating lease agreement. The lease is a 25 year term; the College has the option to
renew the lease for two additional 25 year terms. Fiscal year 2012 was the first year this lease was
in effect. The amount included in expenditures for rent under this agreement at August 31, 2020
and 2019 for rent under this lease were $611,821 and $616,330, respectively.
During FY 2017, the College entered into two operating leases: one for Sonography equipment
and one for IT network equipment. The Sonography equipment contract is a five year, fair market
value lease through Philip Medical Capital, LLC. Payment on this lease began in September 2017,
and will go through August 2022. The IT network equipment lease is a 3 year financing contract
through De Lage Laden Financial. Payments on this lease began in September 2017, and two
additional payments were made in September 2018 and 2019. During FY 2019, the college entered
into seven operating lease for computer equipment. The contracts range from three to five years.
During FY 2020, the college entered into (3) 3 year operating leases.
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9.

Bonds Payable

Bonds payable at August 31, 2020 are comprised of the following individual issues:
$10,455,000 Limited Tax School Building and Equipment and Refunding Bonds, Series
2002, issued 1-22-02, due in annual installments of $250,000 to $735,000 through 7-122; interest at 4.90%, to provide funds for construction costs and equipment in
College’s building expansion and to refund certain of the College’s outstanding bonds,
secured by future ad valorem taxes.
$10,000,000 Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2006, issued 12-21-06, due in
installments of $140,000 to $545,000 from 7-1-09 through 7-1-25; interest at 4.00% to
provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, enlarge, equip, operate and/or
maintain any property, buildings, structures, activities, operations, or facilities of any
nature; to refund Series 1996 bonds maturing 2013 through 2015, 2018 and 2021
inclusive on aggregate principal amount of $3,540,000; for funding a reserve fund
paying costs of issuance related to bonds; to refund Series 2000 maturing 7-1-13
through 7-1-25 in aggregate principal amount of $3,885.000.
$7,500,000 Limited Tax School Building and Equipment, Bonds Series 2007, issued 227-07, due in installments of $155,000 to $535,000, from 7-1-08 to 7-1-27; interest at
3.980% to provide funds for construction and equipment of school buildings, including
a new science building and renovations to existing facilities of the district.
$2,210,000 Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 issued 5-14-13, due in
installments of $200,000 to $235,000 from 7-1-14 through 7-1-23, interest at 1.45%, to
refund Series 2003 Revenue and Refunding Bonds maturing 2014 through 2013
inclusive on aggregate principal amount of $2,160,000, and to pay costs of issuance
associated with the bonds, secured by a pledge of certain revenues and additionally
secured by the Reserve fund.
$4,120,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 issued 12-10-15, due in installments of
$185,000 to $385,000 from 7-1-17 through 7-1-30, interest at 2.84%; to provide funds
to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, enlarge, equip, operate and/or maintain any
property, buildings, structures, activities, operations or facilities, or any nature and
paying cost of issuance with the bonds, secured by a pledge of certain revenues.
$8,900,000 Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 issued on 7-01-2020, due in
installments of $765,000 to $855,000 through 8-31-2031, interest at 1.12% to provide
funds for refunding of Series 2010 in the aggregate amount of $8,900,000. The
refunding generated a net present value savings to the College of $1,422,937.

$ 1,070,000

3,000,000

3,345,000

700,000

3,350,000

8,900,000

$ 20,365,000

All authorized bonds were issued for each series.
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For the year ended August 31, 2020 the College was in compliance with all significant covenants
and restrictions that are contained in the various bond indentures. Revenues pledged for retirement
of Revenue Bonds consist of tuition, fees and various auxiliary income.
10.

Advance Refunding Bonds

On April 10, 2020, the College closed on the sale of Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020,
with a par amount of $8,900,000. The bonds were sold at par, and sold with a coupon of 1.12%.
The proceeds of the issue were used to call the Series 2010 GO debt on July 1, 2020, which had a
coupon of 3.95%. The maturity date of the Series 2020 bonds is July 1, 2031, which matches the
original maturity date of the Series 2010 bonds. The refunding generated a net present value
savings to the College of $1,422,937.
11.

Defeased Bonds Outstanding

Not Applicable.
12.

Short-term Debt

Not applicable.
13.

Employees’ Retirement Plan

The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for almost all its employees.
Teacher Retirement System of Texas
Plan Description. Temple College participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension that has a special funding situation. The plan is administered by the Teacher
Retirement System of Texas (TRS). It is a defined benefit pension plan established and
administered in accordance with the Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Section 67 and Texas
Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. The pension trust fund is a qualified pension trust under
Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Texas Legislature establishes benefits and
contribution rates within the guidelines of the Texas Constitution. The pension’s Board of
Trustees does not have the authority to establish or amend benefit terms.
All employees of public, state-supported educational institutions in Texas who are employed for
one-half or more of the standard work load and who are not exempted from membership under
Texas Government Code, Title 8, Section 822.002 are covered by the system.
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the TRS’s fiduciary net position
is available in a separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained from on the
Internet at https://trs.texas.gov/TRS%20Documents/cafr2019.pdf, selecting About TRS then
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Publications then Financial Reports or by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Street, Austin, TX,
78701-2698
Benefits Provided. TRS provides service and disability retirement, as well as death and survivor
benefits, to eligible employees (and their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas.
The pension formula is calculated using 2.3 percent (multiplier) times the average of the five
highest annual creditable salaries times years of credited service to arrive at the annual standard
annuity except for members who are grandfathered, the three highest annual salaries are used.
The normal service retirement is at age 65 with 5 years of credited service or when the sum of the
member’s age and years of credited service equals 80 or more years. Early retirement is at age 55
with 5 years of service credit or earlier than 55 with 30 years of service credit. There are additional
provisions for early retirement if the sum of the member’s age and years of service credit total at
least 80, but the member is less than age 60 or 62 depending on date of employment, or if the
member was grandfathered in under a previous rule. There are no automatic post-employment
benefit changes; including automatic COLAs. Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes, including
ad hoc COLAs can be granted by the Texas Legislature as noted in the Plan description in (A)
above.
Texas Government Code section 821.006 prohibits benefit improvements, if, as a result of the
particular action, the time required to amortize TRS’ unfunded actuarial liabilities would be
increased to a period that exceeds 31 years, or, if the amortization period already exceeds 31 years,
the period would be increased by such action.
In May, 2019, the 86th Texas Legislature approved the TRS Pension Reform Bill (Senate Bill 12)
that provides for gradual contribution increases from the state, participating employers and active
employees to make the pension fund actuarially sound. This action causing the pension fund to be
actuarially sound, allowed the legislature to approve funding for a 13th check in September 2019.
All eligible members retired as of December 31, 2018 received an extra annuity check in either the
matching amount of their monthly annuity or $2,000, whichever was less.
Contributions. Contribution requirements are established or amended pursuant to Article 16,
section 67 of the Texas Constitution which requires the Texas legislature to establish a member
contribution rate of not less than 6% of the member’s annual compensation and a state contribution
rate of not less than 6% and not more than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation paid to
members of the system during the fiscal year.
Employee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government Code 825.402. The TRS
Pension Reform Bill (Senate Bill 12) of the 86th Texas Legislature amended Texas Government
Code 825.402 for member contributions and increased employee and employer contribution rates
for fiscal years 2020 thru 2025. Contribution Rates can be found in the TRS 2019 CAFR, Note 12,
on page 76.
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Contribution Rates

Member
Non-Employer Contributing Entity (State)
Employers

2019
7.7%
6.8%
6.8%

Temple College - 2019 Employer Contributions
Temple College - 2019 NECE On-Behalf Contributions
Temple College - 2019 Member Contributions

2020
7.7%
7.5%
7.5%
$464,943
$362,337
$462,651

Contributors to the plan include members, employers, and the State of Texas as the only nonemployer contributing entity. The State is the employer for senior colleges, medical schools, and
state agencies including TRS. In each respective role, the State contributes to the plan in
accordance with state statutes and the General Appropriations Act (GAA).
As the non-employer contributing entity for public education and junior colleges, the State of
Texas contributes to the retirement system an amount equal to the current employer contribution
rate times the aggregate annual compensation of all participating members of the pension trust
fund during that fiscal year reduced by the amounts described below which are paid by the
employers. Employers (public school, junior college, other entities or the State of Texas as the
employer for senior universities and medical schools) are required to pay the employer
contribution rate in the following instances:







On the portion of the member’s salary that exceeds the statutory minimum for members
entitled to the statutory minimum under Section 21.402 of the Texas Education Code.
During a new member’s first 90 days of employment.
When any part or all of an employee’s salary is paid by federal funding sources, a privately
sponsored source, from non-educational and general, or local funds.
When the employing district is a public junior college or junior college district, the
employer shall contribute to the retirement system an amount equal to 50% of the state
contribution rate for certain instructional or administrative employees; and 100% of the
state contribution rate for all other employees.
When the employing district is a public or charter school, the employer shall contribute
1.5% of covered payroll to the pension fund beginning in fiscal year 2020. This
contribution rate called the Public Education Employer Contribution will replace the
Non(OASDI) surcharge that was in effect in fiscal year 2010.

In addition to the employer contributions listed above, there are two additional surcharges an
employer is subject to.
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When employing a retiree of the Teacher Retirement System the employer shall pay both
the member contribution and the state contribution as an employment after retirement
surcharge.
When a school district or charter school does not contribute to the Federal Old-Age,
Survivors and Disability Insurance (OASDI) Program for certain employees, they must
contribute 1.5% of the state contribution rate for certain instructional or administrative
employees; and 100% of the state contribution rate for all other employees. This surcharge
was in effect through fiscal year 2019 and was replaced with the Public Education
Employer Contribution explained above.

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the August 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: Actuarial Assumptions can be found in the
2019 TRS CAFR, Note 11, page 77.


Valuation Date










Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method
Single Discount Rate
Long-term expected Investment Rate of Return
Inflation
Salary Increases including inflation
Benefit changes during the year
Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes

August 31, 2018 rolled
forward to August 31, 2019
Individual Entry Age Normal
Market Value
7.25%
7.25%
2.30%
3.05% to 9.05%
None
None

The actuarial methods and assumptions are used in the determination of the total pension liability
are the same assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2018. For a full
description of these assumptions please see the actuarial valuation report dated November 9, 2018.
Discount Rate. A single discount rate of 7.25 percent was used to measure the total pension
liability. The single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on plan investments of
7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that
contributions from active members, employers and the non-employer contributing entity will be
made at the rates set by the legislature during the 2019 session. It is assumed that future employer
and state contributions will be 8.50 percent of payroll in fiscal year 2020 gradually increasing to
9.55 percent of payroll over the next several years. This includes all employer and state
contributions for active and rehired retirees.

98

34

Temple College
Notes to the Financial Statements
August 31, 2020
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total pension liability.
The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.25%. The long-term expected rate
of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which
best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Systems target
asset allocation as of August 31, 2019 (see page 52 of the TRS CAFR) are summarized below:
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Asset Class

Global Equity
U.S.
Non-U.S. Developed
Emerging Markets
Directional Hedge Funds
Private Equity
Stable Value
U.S. Treasuries
Absolute Return
Stable Value Hedge Funds
Real Return
Global Inflation Linked Bonds
Real Assets
Energy and Natural Resources
Commodities
Risk Parity
Risk Parity
Asset Allocation Levarage
Cash
Asset Allocation Levarage
Total

FY 19
Target
Allocation
%

New Target
Allocation
%

Long-Term
Expected
Geometric
Real Rate of
Return

18%
13%
9%
4%
13%

18.00%
13.00%
9.00%
0.00%
14.00%

6.40%
6.30%
7.30%
0.00%
8.40%

11%
0%
4%

16.00%
0.00%
5.00%

3.10%
0.00%
4.50%

3%
14%
5%
0%

0.00%
15.00%
6.00%
0.00%

0.00%
8.50%
7.30%
0.00%

5%

8.00%

5.8%/6.5%

1%
0%
100%

2.00%
-6.00%
100.00%

2.50%
2.70%
7.23%

Source: TRS 2019 Comprehensive Annual Report

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The following schedule shows the impact of the Net Pension
Liability if the discount rate used was 1% less and 1% greater than the discount rate that was used
(7.25%) in measuring the Net Pension Liability. The discount rate can be found in the 2019 TRS
CAFR, Note 12, page 78.
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1% Decrease
in Discount
Rate (6.25%)
Temple College's
proportionate share of
the net pension liability: $ 10,614,365

Discount Rate
(7.25%)

1% Increase
in Discount
Rate (8.25%)

$

$

6,905,246

3,900,142

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions. At August 31, 2020, Temple College reported a liability of
$6,905,246 for its proportionate share of the TRS’s net pension liability. This liability reflects a
reduction for State pension support provided to the College. The amount recognized by the College
as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion
of the net pension liability that was associated with the College were as follows:
Temple College's proportionate share
of the collective net pension liability

$

6,905,246

State's proportionate share that is
associated with Temple College

$

5,381,589

Total

$

12,286,835

The net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2018 and rolled forward to August 31,
2019 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on the employer’s contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all
employers to the plan for the period September 1, 2018 thru August 31, 2019.
At the measurement date of August 31, 2019, the employer’s proportion of the collective net
pension liability was 0.013283%, an increase from 0.0127827%, its proportion measured as of
August 31, 2018.
Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation:



The single discount rate as of August 31, 2018 was a blended rate of 6.907 percent and
that has changed to the long-term rate of return of 7.25 percent as of August 31, 2019.
With the enactment of SB 3 by the 2019 Texas Legislature, an assumption has been made
about how this would impact future salaries. It is assumed that eligible active members
will each receive a $2,700 increase in fiscal year 2020. This is in addition to the salary
increase expected in the actuarial assumption.
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The Texas legislature approved funding for a 13th check. All eligible members retired as
of December 31, 2018 will receive an extra annuity check in September 2019 in either the
matching amount of their monthly annuity payment or $2,000, whichever is less.

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability
during the measurement period.
For the year ended August 31, 2020, Temple College recognized pension expense of $442,060 and
revenue of $442,060 for support provided by the State.
At August 31, 2019, Temple College reported its proportionate share of the TRS’s deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:
Deferred
Deferred
Inflows of
Outflows of
Resources
Resources
Record proportionate share of collective
deferred outflows/inflows for the difference
between expected and actual experience
$
29,008
$
239,761
Changes in actuarial assumptions

$ 2,142,346

$

885,319

Differences between projected and actual
investement earnings

$

415,145

$

345,809

Changes in proportion and difference between
the employer's contribution and the
proportionate share of contributions

$

204,376

$

344,137

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the
measurement date

$

557,413

$

Total

$ 3,348,288
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The net amounts of the employer’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year Ended August 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Pension Expense
$
$
$
$
$
$

Amount
121,824
66,075
366,502
344,720
129,526
(52,797)

Optional Retirement Plan
Plan Description. Participation in the Optional Retirement Program is in lieu of participation in
the Teacher Retirement System. The optional retirement program provides for the purchase of
annuity contracts and operates under the provisions of the Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Sec.
67, and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C.
Funding Policy. Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and
amended by the Texas legislature. The percentages of participant salaries currently contributed by
the state and each participant are 6.6% (state = 3.3%, local = 3.3%) and 6.65%, respectively.
Benefits fully vest after one year plus one day of employment. Because these are individual
annuity contracts, the state has no additional or unfunded liability for this program. SB 1812,
effective September 1, 2013, limits the amount of the State’s contribution to 50% of eligible
employees in the reporting district.
The retirement expense to the State for the College was $125,599 and $139,916 for the fiscal years
ended August 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. This amount represents the portion of expended
appropriations made by the State Legislature on behalf of the College.
The total payroll for all College employees was $19,037,679 and $18,133,360 for fiscal years 2020
and 2019, respectively. The total payroll of employees covered by the Teacher Retirement System
was $12,911,471 and $12,189,962 and the total payroll of employees covered by the Optional
Retirement System was $4,021,207 and $4,239,875 for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively.
14.

Deferred Compensation Program

College employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment
purposes pursuant to authority granted in Government Code 609.001. The Plan is through AIG
through the State.
As of August 31, 2020, the College has 4 employees participating in the program. These 4
employees were vested as of August 31, 2020. A total of $35,566 in contributions was invested
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in the plan during the fiscal year. The funds are invested in Empower Retirement Services in each
employee’s account and are not a liability to Temple College.
15.

Compensable Absences

Full-time employees earn annual leave from 8 to 12 hours per month depending on the number of
years employed with Temple College. The College’s policy is that an employee may carry his/her
accrued leave forward with proper approval. Employees who terminate employment for whatever
reason are entitled to payment for all accumulated annual leave up to a maximum of one year’s
worth of accumulation. The College recognized the accrued liability for the unpaid annual leave
in the amount of $412,564 and $388,638 for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Sick leave, which is accumulated up to a limit of 1040 hours, is earned at the rate of 8 hours per
month and is paid to an employee who misses work from illness or immediate family illness.
Employees who terminate employment for whatever reason or upon death of the employee, in
which the funds are paid to the estate of the employee, are entitled to payment of 173.33 hours
provided the employee has worked 10 or more years of full-time employment at Temple College.
The maximum sick leave that may be paid to the employee at termination of employment, or the
employee’s estate, is 173.33 hours. The College recognized the accrued liability for the unpaid
sick leave in the amount of $478,354 and $509,258 for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively.
16.

Pending Lawsuits and Claims

As of August 31, 2020, there were no pending lawsuits or claims against the College.

104

40

Temple College
Notes to the Financial Statements
August 31, 2020
17.

Disaggregation of Receivables and Payable Balances

Receivables
Receivables at August 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Student Receivables
Taxes Receivable
Federal Receivable
State Receivable
Other Receivable
Subtotal
Less: Allowance for Doubted Accounts

2020
$ 4,844,664
286,369
109,292
929,938
$ 6,170,263
(779,457)

2019
$ 4,825,960
325,056
213,036
10,776
925,717
$ 6,300,544
(778,439)

Total Receivables

$ 5,390,806

$ 5,522,105

Vendors Payable
Salaries & Benefits Payable
Students Payable

2020
$ 1,061,750
372,051
275

2019
$ 685,593
23,075
(21,888)

Total Payables

$ 1,434,076

$

Payables
Payables at August 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

18.

686,780

Funds Held in Trust by Others

None.
19.

Contracts and Grant Awards

Contract and grants awards are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of the AICPA
Industry Audit Guide, Audits of Colleges and Universities. Revenues are recognized on Exhibit 2
and Schedule A. For federal and non-federal contracts and grant awards, funds expended, but not
collected, are reported as Accounts Receivable on Exhibit 1. Contract and grant awards that are
not yet funded and for which the institution has not yet performed services are not included in the
financial statements. Contract and grant awards funds already committed, e.g., multi-year awards,
or funds awarded during fiscal years 2020 and 2019 for which monies have not been received nor
funds expended totaled $1,272,075 and $1,659,607. Of these amounts, $1,272,075 and $1,655,840
were from Federal Contract and Grant Awards.
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20. Self-Insured Plans
The College participates in self-insured worker’s compensation and unemployment compensation
plans. Employee health insurance is offered through the State of Texas Employee Retirement
System group plan. The Worker’s Compensation plan is a self-insured group comprised of
approximately fifteen (15) state community colleges and a loss fund is set up on the College books
to record the estimated exposure each year. Unemployment claims are managed by the Texas
Workforce Commission and payments are made on a claims-made basis.
21.

Post-Retirement Health Care & Life Insurance Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the state provides certain health care and life insurance
benefits for retired employees. Almost all of the employees may become eligible for those benefits
if they reach normal retirement age while working for the state. Those and similar benefits for
active employees are provided through an insurance company whose premiums are based on
benefits paid during the previous year. The state recognizes the cost of providing these benefits
by expending the annual insurance premiums. The state’s contribution per full-time employee was
$922 per month for the year ended August 31, 2020 ($937 per month for 2019) and totaled
$1,691,653 for 2020 ($1,583,857 for 2019). The cost of providing those benefits for retirees is not
separable from the cost of providing benefits for the active employees.
22.

Ad Valorem Tax

The College’s ad valorem property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of
the prior January 1 for all real and business personal property located in the College’s taxing
district.
At August 31:
2020
$ 7,027,827,009
(1,289,568,362)
(339,627,267)
$ 5,398,631,380

Assessed Valuation of the College:
Less: Exemptions
Less: Abatements
Net Assessed Valuation of the College:
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(1,135,063,971)
(371,495,966)
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2020
Debt
Service

Current
Operations

Total

2019
Debt
Service

Current
Operations

Total

Authorized
Tax Rate per
$100 valuation

$

-

$

-

$ 0.2500

$

$

0.04910

$ 0.18860

$

-

$

-

$ 0.2500

Assessed
Tax Rate per
$100 valuation

$ 0.13950

0.14341

$

0.05454

$ 0.19795

Taxes levied for the year ended August 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $10,570,666 and
$9,880,230, respectively, including any penalty and interest assessed. Taxes are due on receipt of
the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which
imposed.
2019

2020

Current Taxes Collected
Deliquent Taxes Collected
Penalties & Interest Collected
Total Collections

Current
Operations
$ 7,362,543
38,553
45,592
$ 7,446,688

Debt
Service
$ 2,589,115
14,689
16,033
$ 2,619,837

Total
$ 9,951,658
53,242
61,625
$ 10,066,525

Current
Operations
$ 6,802,391
154,480
38,983
$ 6,995,854

Debt
Service
$ 2,579,438
62,919
14,842
$ 2,657,199

Total
$ 9,381,829
217,399
53,825
$ 9,653,053

For fiscal year 2020, allowance for the uncollectible taxes is assumed to be 100%. The use of tax
proceeds is restricted for the use of maintenance and/or general obligation debt service. The
College remitted payments of $931,631 and $1,044,836 in fiscal year 2020 and 2019, respectively,
for taxes collected on behalf of the Temple Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone.
Tax Abatements
The city of Temple entered into abatement agreements that reduced ad valorem tax payable on real
property improvements. The total abated for FY 2020 was $339,627,267, resulting in $640,537
of forgone revenue, based on the College’s tax rate of $0.1886 per $100 of value.
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23. Branch Campus Maintenance Tax
A branch campus maintenance tax has been established by election and levied by Hutto
Independent School District in Williamson County, Texas. It is levied each October 1 on the
assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and business personal property located in
Hutto Independent School District. Collections are transferred to the College to be used for the
operation of a Branch Campus at Hutto. This revenue is reported under Local Grants and
Contracts.
Collections (including penalties
County or I.S.D.
and interest)
August 31, 2020
August 31, 2019
Hutto I.S.D.
$ 1,831,029
$ 1,597,034
24.

Income Taxes

The College is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115, Income of
States, Municipalities, Etc., although unrelated business income may be subject to income taxes
under Internal Revenue Code Section 511 (a)(2)(B), Imposition of Tax on Unrelated Business
Income of Charitable, Etc Organizations. The College had no unrelated business income tax
liability for the years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019.
25.

Component Units

Temple College Foundation – Discrete Component Unit
Temple College Foundation (the Foundation) was established as a separate nonprofit organization
in 1982, for the purpose of providing student scholarships and assistance in the development and
growth of the College. Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 39,
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, the Foundation is a component
unit of the College because:


The College provides financial support to the Foundation and the economic resources
received or held by the Foundation are entirely for the benefit of the College.



The College is entitled to or has the ability to otherwise access a majority of the economic
resources received or held by the Foundation.



The economic resources held by the Foundation that the College is entitled to or has the
ability to otherwise access are significant to the College.

Accordingly, the Foundation financial statements are included in the College’s annual report as a
discrete component unit (see table of contents). Fiscal year 2020 financial statements were not
included, as the audit for 2020 was not completed by the date the College’s financial statements
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were audited and submitted. Complete financial statements of Temple College Foundation can be
obtained from the administrative office of the Foundation.
26.

Related Parties (Not a Component Unit)

Not applicable.
27.

Subsequent Events

None.
28.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description. Temple College participates in a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan with a special funding situation. The Texas Employees Group
Benefits Program (GBP) is administered by the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS).
The GBP provides certain postemployment health care, life and dental insurance benefits to retired
employees of participating universities, community colleges, and State agencies in accordance
with Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code. Almost all employees may become eligible for those
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the State and retire with at least 10
years of service to eligible entities. Surviving spouses and dependents of these retirees are also
covered. Benefit and contribution provisions of the GBP are authorized by State law and may be
amended by the Texas Legislature.
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the GBP’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued ERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) that
includes financial statements, notes to the financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at https://ers.texas.gov/AboutERS/Reports-and-Studies/Reports-on-Overall-ERS-Operations-and-Financial-Management; or
by writing to ERS at: 200 East 18th Street, Austin, TX 78701; or by calling (877) 275-4377.
Benefits Provided. Retiree health benefits offered through the GBP are available to most State of
Texas retirees and their eligible dependents. Participants need at least ten years of service credit
with an agency or institution that participates in the GBP to be eligible for GBP retiree insurance.
The GBP provides self-funded group health (medical and prescription drug) benefits for eligible
retirees under HealthSelect. The GBP also provides a fully insured medical benefit option for
Medicare-primary participants under the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and life insurance
benefits to eligible retirees via a minimum premium funding arrangement. The authority under
which the obligations of the plan members and employers are established and/or may be amended
is Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code.
Contributions. Section 1551.055 of Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code, provides that
contribution requirements of the plan members and the participating employers are established and
may be amended by the ERS Board of Trustees. The employer and member contribution rates are
determined annually by the ERS Board of Trustees based on the recommendations of ERS staff
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and its consulting actuary. The contribution rates are determined based on (i) the benefit and
administrative costs expected to be incurred, (ii) the funds appropriated and (iii) the funding policy
established by the Texas Legislature in connection with benefits provided through the GBP. The
Trustees revise benefits when necessary to match expected benefit and administrative costs with
the revenue expected to be generated by the appropriated funds.
The following table summarizes the maximum monthly employer contribution toward eligible
retirees’ health and basic life premium. Retirees pay any premium over and above the employer
contribution. The employer does not contribute toward dental or optional life insurance. Surviving
spouses and their dependents do not receive any employer contribution. As the non-employer
contributing entity (NECE), the State of Texas pays part of the premiums for the junior and
community colleges.
Retiree Health and Basic Life Premium
Fiscal Year 2019
Retiree only
Retiree & spouse
Retiree & children
Retiree & family

$
625
$
983
$
865
$ 1,223

Contributions of premiums to the GBP plan for the current and prior fiscal year by source is
summarized in the following table.
Premium Contributions by Source
Group Benefits Program Plan
For the Years Ended August 31, 2019 and 2018

Employers
Members (Employees)
Nonemployer Contributing Entity (State of Texas)

FY 2019
$401,284,833
$209,836,664
$20,182,872

FY 2018
$307,028,461
$203,123,120
$16,585,270

Source: ERS FY 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
August 31, 2019 using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

110

46

Temple College
Notes to the Financial Statements
August 31, 2020
Actuarial Assumptions
ERS Group Benefits Program Plan
Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Discount rate
Projected annual salary increase (includes inflation)
Annual healthcare trend rate
Inflation assumption rate
Ad hoc postemployment benefit changes
Morality assumptions:
Service retirees, survivors and other inactive members

Disability retirees

Active members

August 31, 2019
Entry age
Level percent of pay, open
30 years
N/A
2.97%
2.50% to 9.50%
7.30% for FY 2021, decreasing 0.5% per
year to 4.50% for 2028 and later years
2.50%
None
Tables based on TRS experience with
Ultimate MP Projection Scale from year
2018.
Tables based on TRS experience with
Ultimate MP Projections Scale from the
year 2018 using a 3-year set forward and
minimum mortality rates of four per 100
males and two per 100 female members.
Sex Distinct RP-2014 Employee with
Morality multiplied by 90% with Ultimate
MP Projection Scale from year 2014.

Source: 2019 ERS CAFR

Many of the actuarial assumptions used in this valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies performed by the ERS and TRS retirement plan actuaries for the period
September 1, 2010 to August 31, 2014 for higher education members.
Investment Policy. The State Retiree Health Plan is a pay-as-you-go plan and does not accumulate
funds in advance of retirement. The System’s Board of Trustees adopted the amendment to the
investment policy in August 2017 to require that all funds in the plan be invested in short-term
fixed income securities and specify that the expected rate of return on these investments is 2.4%
(see FY 2019 ERS CAFR, OPEB footnote).
Discount Rate. Because the GBP does not accumulate funds in advance of retirement, the discount
rate that was used to measure the total OPEB liability is the municipal bonds rate. The discount
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rate used to determine the total OPEB liability as of the beginning of the measurement year was
3.96%. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of the end of the measurement
year was 2.97%, which amounted to an increase of 0.99%) The source of the municipal bond rate
was the Bond Buyer Index of general obligation bonds with 20 years to maturity and mixed credit
quality. The bonds average credit quality is roughly equivalent to Moody’s Investors Service’s
Aa2 rating and Standard & Poor’s Corp’s AA rating. Projected cash flows into the plan are equal
to projected benefit payments out of the plan. Because the plan operates on a pay-as-you-go
(PAYGO) basis and is not intended to accumulate assets, there is no long-term expected rate of
return on plan assets and therefore the years of projected benefit payments to which the long-term
expected rate of return is applicable is zero years.
Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The following schedule shows the impact on the College’s
proportionate share of the collective net OPEB Liability if the discount rate used was 1 percent
less than and 1 percent greater than the discount rate that was used 2.97% in measuring the net
OPEB Liability.

Temple College's
proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability:

1% Decrease
in Discount
Rate (1.97%)

Discount
Rate (2.97%)

1% Increase
in Discount
Rate (3.97%)

$ 29,467,833

$ 24,694,220

$ 21,021,057

Healthcare Trend Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The initial healthcare trend rate is 7.3% and the
ultimate rate is 4.5%. The following schedule shows the impact on the College’s proportionate
share of the collective net OPEB Liability if the healthcare cost trend rate used was 1 percent less
than and 1 percent greater than the healthcare cost trend rate that was used (7.30%) in measuring
the net OPEB liability.

Temple College's
proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability:

1% Decrease
in Healthcare
Cost Trend
Rates (6.3%
decreasing to
3.5%)

Current
Healthcare
Cost Trend
Rates (7.3%
decreasing to
4.5%)

1% Increase
in Healthcare
Cost Trend
Rates (8.3%
decreasing to
5.5%)

$ 20,735,517

$ 24,694,220

$ 29,867,335

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB. At August 31, 2020, the College reported a liability of $24,694,220
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for its proportionate share of the ERS’s net OPEB liability. This liability reflects a reduction for
State support provided to the College for OPEB. The amount recognized by the College as its
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the
net OPEB liability that was associated with the College were as follows:
Temple College’s Proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability
State’s proportionate share that is associated with Temple College
Total

$24,694,220
$18,473,847
$43,168,067

The net OPEB liability was measured as of August 31, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
employer’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the employer’s contributions to the
OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all employers to the plan for the period September 1,
2018, thru August 31, 2019.
At the measurement date of August 31, 2019, the employer’s proportion of the collective net OPEB
liability was 0.07144765%. The proportion measured as of August 31, 2018 was 0.06658434%
For the year ended August 31, 2020 the College recognized OPEB expense of $20,929 and revenue
of $20,929 for support provided by the State.
Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation – Changes to the actuarial assumptions or other inputs
that affected measurement of the total OPEB liability since the prior measurement period were as
follows:







Demographic assumptions (including rates of retirement, disability, termination, and
mortality, and assumed salary increases for higher education members) have been updated
to reflect assumptions recently adopted by the Teachers Retirement System (TRS) Trustee
The percentage of current and future their spouses not yet eligible to participate in the
HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and future retirees and their spouse who will elect
to participate in the plan at the earliest date as which coverage can commence.
Assumptions for administrative expenses, assumed per Capita Health Benefit Costs, Health
Benefit Cost and Retiree Contribution trends to reflect recent health plan experience;
Effects in short-term expectations and revised assumed rate of general inflation.

Changes of Benefit Terms Since Prior Measurement Date – The following benefit revision has
been adopted since the prior valuation:


The only benefit changes for HealthSelect retirees and dependents for whom Medicare is
not primary is an increase in out-of-pocket maximum for both HealthSelect and Consumer
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Direct HealthSelect. This minor benefit change has been reflected in the fiscal year 2019
Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs.
At August 31, 2020, the College reported its proportionate share of the ERS plan’s collective
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual
economic experience

$

Changes in actuarial assumptions

$ 1,757,357

$ 5,518,223

Differences between projected and actual
investement earnings

$

$

Record CY effect of changes in
proportion and contribution difference

$ 1,485,271

Contributions paid to ERS subsequent to the
measurement date

$

Total

$ 3,645,753

-

10,152

392,973

$

642,566

-

$ (1,557,963)

0
$ 4,602,826

The net amounts of the employer’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Year Ended August 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

OPEB Expense Amount
($946,032)
($946,032)
($268,940)
$448,372
$362,587
$0
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Schedule of Temple College's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Last 6 Fiscal Years**

Fiscal year ending August 31*
Temple College's proportionate share of collective net pension liability

2020
0.0132836%

2019
0.0127827%

$
$
$

6,905,246 $
5,381,589 $
12,286,835 $

7,035,911 $
5,571,884 $
12,607,795 $

4,214,600 $
3,320,711 $
7,535,311 $

5,128,695 $
3,888,063 $
9,016,758 $

4,582,955 $
3,650,257 $
8,233,212 $

4,071,429
3,089,213
7,160,642

Temple College's covered payroll amount
$
TC's proportionate share of collective net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll

12,911,471 $
53.5%

12,189,962 $
57.7%

10,074,295 $
41.8%

9,983,630 $
51.4%

9,479,586 $
48.3%

8,940,730
45.5%

78.00%

78.43%

Temple College's proportionate share of collective net pension liability
State's proportionate share of net pension liability associated with Temple College
Total

Plan fiduciary net position as percentage of total pension liability

75.24%

73.74%

*The amounts presented above are as of the measurement date of the collective net pension liability for the respective fiscal year.
**Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the supplementary information schedules.
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2018
0.0131811%

82.17%

2017
0.0135721%

2016
0.0129650%

2015
0.0152423%

83.25%

Temple College
Schedule of Temple College's Contributions for Pensions
Last 6 Fiscal Years**

Fiscal year ending August 31*

2020

2019

Legally required contributions
Actual contributions
Contributions deficiency (excess)

$
$
$

557,413
557,413
-

$
$
$

Temple College's covered payroll amount
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

$

12,911,471 $
4.3%

2018

468,023
468,023
-

$
$
$

12,189,962 $
3.8%

685,052
685,052
-
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$
$
$

10,074,295 $
6.8%

*The amounts presented above are as of TC's respective fiscal year-end.
**Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the supplementary information schedules.

2017
678,887
678,887
-

2016
$
$
$

9,983,630 $
6.8%

644,612
644,612
-

2015
$
$
$

9,479,586 $
6.8%

607,970
607,970
8,940,730
6.8%

Temple College
Schedule of Temple College's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability
Last 3 Fiscal Years**

Fiscal year ending August 31*
Temple College's proportionate share of collective net OPEB liability

2020
0.0714477%

Temple College's proportionate share of collective net OPEB liability
State's proportionate share of net OPEB liability associated with Temple College
Total

$
$
$

Temple College's covered payroll amount
$
TC's proportionate share of collective net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as percentage of total OPEB liability

24,694,220
18,473,847
43,168,067

2019
0.0665843%
$
$
$

19,037,679 $
129.7%

19,734,095
15,567,749
35,301,844

*The amounts presented above are as of the measurement date of the collective net OPEB liability for the respective fiscal year.
**Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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$
$
$

18,133,360 $
108.8%

0.17%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the supplementary information schedules.

2018
0.0619039%

1.27%

21,092,529
16,628,986
37,721,515
15,742,739
134.0%
2.04%

Schedule of Temple College's Contributions for OPEB
State Retiree Health Plan
Last 3 Fiscal Years**

Fiscal year ending August 31*

2020

2019

Legally required contributions
Actual contributions
Contributions deficiency (excess)

$
$
$

392,973
392,973
-

$
$
$

Temple College's covered payroll amount
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

$

19,037,679 $
2.1%

579,000
579,000
-

2018
$
$
$

18,133,360 $
3.2%

2,256,524
2,256,524
15,742,739
14.3%

*The amounts presented above are as of TC's respective fiscal year-end.
**Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the supplementary information schedules.
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Temple College
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended August, 31, 2020
Pensions
1. Changes of Benefit Terms included:


The District implemented a 2 percent salary and wage increase effective September 1,
2019 for full -time faculty/administrators and all staff.

2. Changes in Assumptions:
Assumptions, methods, and plan changes which were specific to the Pension Trust Fund were
updated from the prior year’s report. The Net Pension Liability decreased slightly since the
prior measurement date due to a change in the following actuarial assumptions:


The total pension liability as of August 31, 2019 was developed using a roll-forward
method from the August 31, 2018 valuation.



The investment return assumption decreased from 8.00% to 7.25%.



The discount rate changed from 6.907% as of August 31, 2018 to 7.25% as of August
31, 2019.



The Municipal Bond Rate decreased from 3.69% as of August 31, 2018 to 2.63% as of
August 31, 2019.

OPEB
1. Change of Benefit Terms
The only benefit revision have been adopted since the prior valuation is an increase in
out-of-pocket maximum for both HealthSelect and Consumer Directed HealthSelect for
those HealthSelect retirees and dependents for whom Medicare is not primary. These
minor benefit changes have been reflected in the fiscal year 2020 Assumed Per Capital
Health Benefit Costs.
2. Changes of Assumptions
Changes to the actuarial assumption or other inputs that affected measurement of the total
OPEB liability since the prior measurement period were as follows:


Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and assumed Health Benefit Costs and
Retiree Contribution trends have been updated to reflect recent experience and its
effects on our short-term expectations
120
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Temple College
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended August, 31, 2020


The percentage of current retirees and their spouses not yet eligible to participate in
HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and future retirees and their spouses who will
elect to participate in the plan at the earliest date as which coverage can commence.



The percentage of future male retirees assumed to be married and electing coverage for
their spouse.



The percentage of future retirees and future retiree spouse assumed to use tobacco have
been updated to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends.



The discount rate assumption was changed from 3.96% as of August 31, 2018 to 2.97%
as of August 31, 2019 as a result of requirements by GASB No. 74 to utilize the yield
or index rate of 20-years, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bond rates AA/As
(or equivalent) or higher in effect on the measurement date.
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Temple College

Schedule A

Schedule of Operating Revenues
For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 (with Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended August 31, 2019)

Unrestricted
Tuition
State funded courses
District tuition
Out-of-district tuition
Non-resident tuition
Health science tuition
TPEG-Credit (set aside) *
State funded continuing education
TPEG-non-credit (set aside) *
Non-state funded continuing education
Total Tuition

$

Fees
General fee
Laboratory fee
Other fees
Total Fees
Scholarships Allowances and Discounts
Remissions, exemptions, waivers - state
Remissions, exemptions, waivers - local
TPEG discounts
Title IV federal grants discounts
Texas grants I & II discounts
Other local discounts
Total Scholarship Allowances

6,847,601
4,080,539
358,905
188,179
469,979
32,936
11,978,139

Restricted

$

439,125
439,125

Total
Educational

$

6,847,601
4,080,539
358,905
188,179
439,125
469,979
32,936
12,417,264

Auxiliary
Enterprises

$

-

2020
Total

$

6,847,601
4,080,539
358,905
188,179
439,125
469,979
32,936
12,417,264

2019
Total

$

6,933,802
4,055,426
403,732
196,810
384,464
562,141
36,390
38,887
12,611,652

1,435,014
156,534
2,174,975
3,766,523

-

1,435,014
156,534
2,174,975
3,766,523

-

1,435,014
156,534
2,174,975
3,766,523

1,443,130
135,958
2,139,977
3,719,065

(897,364)
(1,255,276)
(175,138)
(3,777,418)
(133,768)
(259,786)
(6,498,750)

-

(897,364)
(1,255,276)
(175,138)
(3,777,418)
(133,768)
(259,786)
(6,498,750)

-

(897,364)
(1,255,276)
(175,138)
(3,777,418)
(133,768)
(259,786)
(6,498,750)

(881,536)
(1,166,682)
(139,790)
(2,526,857)
(113,972)
(185,191)
(5,014,028)

Total Net Tuition and Fees

9,245,912

439,125

9,685,037

-

9,685,037

11,316,689

Additional Operating Revenues
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Private gifts, grants, and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
General operating revenue
Total Additional Operating Revenue

2,004,789
1,000
714,401
2,720,190

2,242,390
417,007
150,000
28,656
2,838,053

2,242,390
417,007
2,154,789
1,000
743,057
5,558,243

-

2,242,390
417,007
2,154,789
1,000
743,057
5,558,243

1,091,545
490,989
1,824,383
10,915
736,644
4,154,476

-

-

-

206,384
206,384

206,384
206,384

227,681
227,681

11,966,102

$ 3,277,178

$ 15,243,280

206,384

$ 15,449,664
(Exhibit 2)

$ 15,698,846
(Exhibit 2)

Auxiliary Enterprises
Miscellaneous income
Total Auxiliary Enterprises
Total Operating Revenues

$

$

*In accordance with Education Code 56.033, $439,125 and $420,854 for years August 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, of
tuition was set aside for Texas Public Education grants (TPEG).
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Temple College

Schedule B

Schedule of Operating Expenses by Object
Year Ended August 31, 2020 (with Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended August 31, 2019)
Operating Expenses
Benefits
State
Local
Benefits
Benefits

Salaries
& Wages
Unrestricted-Educational Activities
Instruction
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Total Unrestricted Educational Activities

$

Restricted-Educational Activities
Instruction
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Scholarships & Fellowships
Total Restricted Educational Activities
Total Educational Activities
Auxiliary Enterprises
Depreciation of Building and Improvements
Depreciation of Equipment & Furniture
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

$

10,214,048
253,795
1,348,558
2,010,230
3,337,550
601,820
17,766,001

$

-

$

Other
Expenses

2,609,223
121,685
566,180
796,540
1,027,581
507,365
5,628,574

$

2020

2019

745,939
82,931
385,142
138,658
3,041,063
1,955,461
6,349,194

$ 13,569,210
458,411
2,299,880
2,945,428
7,406,194
3,064,646
29,743,769

$ 12,590,460
208,707
2,130,834
3,019,171
6,910,222
3,122,531
27,981,925

458,123
300,941
759,064

1,385,421
511
201,127
139,466
439,145
2,165,670

2,099
119,627
68,068
189,794

99,339
532,628
1,530
142,512
5,634,879
6,410,888

1,486,859
1,110,889
202,657
650,987
439,145
5,634,879
9,525,416

1,354,485
1,024,861
174,731
615,890
416,083
6,369,528
9,955,578

18,525,065

2,165,670

5,818,368

12,760,082

39,269,185

37,937,503

469,376

896

174,430

815,028

1,459,730

1,437,451

-

-

-

1,443,422
28,600

1,443,422
28,600

1,475,035
28,908

18,994,441

$ 2,166,566

5,992,798

$ 15,047,132

$ 42,200,937
(Exhibit 2)

$ 40,878,897
(Exhibit 2)
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$

Temple College

Schedule C

Schedule of Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses
Year Ended August 31, 2020 (with Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended August 31, 2019)

Unrestricted

Restricted

Auxiliary
Enterprises

2020
Total

2019
Total

Non-Operating Revenues
State Appropriations:
Education and General State Support
State Group Insurance
State Retirement Matching
Professional Nursing Growth Shortage
Professional Nursing Over 70%
Small Institution, Article IX and Supplemental

$

7,024,916
33,431

$

1,722,622
970,971
208,257
-

$

-

$

7,024,916
1,722,622
970,971
208,257
33,431

$

7,073,138
1,632,123
691,384
160,000
36,645

Total State Appropriations

7,058,347

2,901,850

-

9,960,197

9,593,290

Maintenance Ad Valorem Taxes
Debt Service Ad Valorem Taxes
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Gifts
Investment Income
Other Non-Operating Revenue

6,763,995
2,370,899
203,116
-

8,550,309
5,000
-

-

6,763,995
2,370,899
8,550,309
5,000
203,116
-

6,243,498
2,364,719
8,622,962
288,290
-

16,396,357

11,457,159

-

27,853,516

27,112,759

Interest on Capital Related Debt
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
Other Non-Operating Expense

896,298
2,652
202,010

8,264

-

896,298
2,652
210,274

981,223
13,557
88,556

Total Non-Operating Expenses

1,100,960

8,264

-

1,109,224

1,083,336

26,744,292

$ 26,029,423

Total Non-Operating Revenues
Non-Operating Expenses

Net Non-Operating Revenues

$ 15,295,397

$

11,448,895

$

-

$

(Exhibit 2)
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(Exhibit 2)

Temple College

Schedule D

Schedule of Net Position by Source and Availability
Year Ended August 31, 2020 (with Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended August 31, 2019)
Detail by Source

Available for Current Operations

Restricted

Unrestricted
Current:
Unrestricted
Board designated
Restricted
Auxiliary enterprises
Loan
Plant
Unexpended
Renewals
Debt service
Investment in plant
Total Net Position, August 31, 2020

$

(22,449,825)
2,022,850
(820,529)
-

Expendable

NonExpendable

$

$

4,858,288
1,868,994
$

(14,520,222)

17,226

144,237
-

3,095,411

$

-

3,078,185
$

Net Investment in
Capital Assets

$

144,237

-

Total
$

21,116,382
$

21,116,382

(22,449,825)
2,022,850
144,237
(820,529)
17,226

Yes
$

4,858,288
1,868,994
3,078,185
21,116,382
$

9,835,808

No

(22,449,825)
2,022,850
144,237
(820,529)
-

$

17,226

$

(21,103,267)

-

4,858,288
1,868,994
3,078,185
21,116,382
$

30,939,075

(Exhibit 1)

Total Net Position, August 31, 2019

(12,399,233)

2,936,035

42,928

19,263,059

9,842,789

(19,462,851)

29,305,640

(Exhibit 1)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

$

(2,120,989)

$

159,376

$

101,309

$

1,853,323

$

(6,981)
(Exhibit 2)
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$

(1,640,416)

$

1,633,435

Temple College

Schedule E

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended August 31, 2020

Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor/Program Title
U.S. Department of Education
Direct Programs:
Student Financial Aid Cluster
SEOG
Federal College Workstudy Program
Federal PELL Grant
Wm D Ford Direct Loans
Total Student Financial Aid Cluster
CARES Act: HEERF

Passed
Expenditures &
Federal CFDA
Pass-Through
Through to
Pass Through
Number
Grantor's Number Subrecipients Disbursements

84.007
84.033
84.063
84.268

170,003
144,468
8,235,838
7,225,392
15,775,701

84.425

887,860

Total Direct Programs
Pass-Through From:
Texas Workforce Commission
Adult Education and Literacy
EL Civics

16,663,561

84.002A
84.002A

2618ALA001
2618ALA001

284,337
24,274

929,762
113,521

Total CFDA 84.002A
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
Carl Perkins Vocational Educ.- Basic
Carl Perkins State Leadership
Total CFDA 84.048

1,043,283

84.048
84.048

2142020271
1742020271

190,527
118,344
308,871

Total U. S. Department of Education
U.S. State Department
Pass-Through From:
CB-SA Guatemala
Total CFDA 19.009

18,015,715

19.009

18CA0068

2,376
2,376

Total U.S. State Department

2,376

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

$

Notes to Schedule on Following Page.
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18,018,091

Temple College

Schedule E

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended August 31, 2020
Note 1: Federal Assistance Reconciliation
Federal Grants and Contracts Revenue - per Schedule A
Add: Non-Operating Federal Revenue from Schedule C
Add: Wm. D. Ford Direct Loans
Total Federal Expenditures per Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

$

$

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies Used in Preparing the Schedule
The expenditures included in the schedule are reported for the College's fiscal year. Expenditure reports to
funding agencies are prepared on the award period basis. The expenditures reported above represent funds,
which have been expended by the College for the purposes of the award. The expenditures reported above may
not have been reimbursed by the funding agencies as of the end of the year. Some amounts reported in the
schedule may differ from amounts used in the preparation of the financial statements. Separate accounts are
maintained for the different awards to aid in the observance of limitations and restrictions imposed by the
funding agencies. The College has followed all applicable guidelines issued by various entities in the
preparation of the schedule.
Note 3: Expenditures Not Subject to Federal Single Audit
None
Note 4: Student Loans Processed and Administrative Costs Recovered - Not Included in Schedule
None
Note 5: Nonmonetary Federal Assistance Received
None
Note 6: Amounts Passed Through by the College
The following amounts were passed through to the listed sub-recipients by the Collge.
U.S. Department of Education
Adult Education & Literacy (CFDA 84.002)
Central Texas College
EL Civics (CFDA 84.002)
Central Texas College
Total amount passed through by the College
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$

284,337

$
$

24,274
308,611

2,242,390
8,550,309
7,225,392
18,018,091

Temple College
Schedule F
Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
For the Year Ended August 31, 2020

State Grantor/Program Title

Contract Number

Texas Workforce Commission
Skills Development - Skills for Small Businesses
State Adult Education and Literacy
Total Texas Workforce Commission

Expenditures

2618SSD000
2618ALA001
$

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
Student Services Division
Texas Grant Program-Texas Grant II TEOG Initial
Texas Grant Program-Texas Grant II TEOG Renewal
Texas College Work Study
Texas Works Study Mentorship
Texas Emergency Aid
Professional Nursing Growth over 70%
JET Grant 2020-2021
Total Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

2,829
2,829

173,007
124,242
22,637
19,022
15,000
208,257
60,270
622,435

TOTAL STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

$

625,264

$

417,007
208,257
625,264

Note 1: State Assistance Reconciliation
State Revenue - per Schedule A:
State Grants and Contracts
State Appropriations - per Schedule C:
Professional Nursing Shortage Reduction
Professional Nursing Growth Shortage Over 70%

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies Used in Preparing the Schedule
The accompanying schedule is presented using the accrual basis. See Notes to the financial
statements for Temple College's significant accounting policies. These expenditures are reported
on Temple College's fiscal year. Expenditure reports to funding agencies are prepared on the
award period basis.
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AUDITORS’ REPORTS ON CONTROLS AND COMPLIANCE

130

131

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, including the Public Funds Investment Act (Chapter
2256, Texas Government Code), noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or the Public Funds Investment Act
(Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code).
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
College’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Temple, Texas
December 28, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
(CONTINUED)
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s
compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Temple College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2020.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the College’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over
compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
(CONTINUED)
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Temple, Texas
December 28, 2020
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TEMPLE COLLEGE
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
August 31, 2020
I. Summary of Audit Results
Financial Statements
1. Type of auditor’s report issued:
2.

3.

unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)?
Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards
4. Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)?
5.
6.

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs:

yes

X

no

yes

X

none reported

yes

X

no

yes

X

no

yes

X

none reported

X

no

unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with section 200.516(a)
of the Uniform Guidance?
yes

7.

Identification of major programs:
Federal
Name of Federal Programs
CFDA
U.S. Department of Education
Student Financial Aid Cluster:
Supplemental Education
Opportunity Grant
84.007
Federal College Work-Study
Program
84.033
Federal Pell Grant Program
84.063
William D Ford Direct Loans
84.268

Name of State Program
N/A – State financial assistance was less
than $750,000 in fiscal year ending
August 31, 2020.

Adult Education and Literacy

84.002A

Cares Act: HEERF

84.425
136

69

TEMPLE COLLEGE
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
August 31, 2019
8.

9.

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B Programs (Federal):
Dollar Threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B Programs
(State):
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

II.

Financial Statement Findings
None.

III.

Federal
Awards
Questioned Costs
None.

Findings

$750,000
$300,000
X

and
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yes

no

Fall 2021
Priority Registration

Regular
Registration

Spring 2022

Summer 2022

April 26–April 30 – 8 & 16-Week Classes

October 25-29 – 8 & 16-Week Classes

March 28– March 31 – 1st 5, 8, & 10-Week
Classes

May 3-August 13 - 16 & 1st 8-Week Classes

Nov 1-January 14 - 16 & 1st 8-Week
Classes

April 4-May 19 - 1st 5, 8, & 10-Week
Classes

*January 10-14 Only those that can pay by
deadline or already have FA awarded.*

*May 23-26 Only those that can pay by
deadline or already have FA awarded.*

Nov 1-March 4 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

April 5-July 5 - 2nd 5-Week Classes

*August 16-17 Only those that can pay by
deadline or already have FA awarded.*
May 3-October 15 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

FA & SUSP Appeal
Due

August 13

January 7

May 26

All College Day

August 11

January 10

N/A

Welcome Week

August 11-13, 16-17

January 10-14

May 23-26

August 18 - 16 & 1st 8-Week Classes

January 18 - 16 & 1st 8-Week Classes

May 31 - 1st 5, 8, & 10-Week Classes

October 18 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

March 21 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

July 5 - 2nd 5-Week Classes

August 20 - 16 & 1st 8-Week Classes

January 20 - 16 & 1st 8-Week Classes

June 2- 1st 5, 8, & 10-Week Classes

October 20 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

March 23 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

July 7 - 2nd 5-Week Classes

August 23 – 1st 8-Week Classes

January 21 – 1st 8-Week Classes

August 25 – 16-Week Classes

January 25 – 16-Week Classes

October 22 – 2nd 8-Week Classes

March 25 – 2nd 8-Week Classes

August 25 - 1st 8-Week Classes

January 25 - 1st 8-Week Classes

September 2 - 16-Week Classes

February 2 - 16-Week Classes

October 25 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

March 28 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

Semester Starts
Last Day to
Add/Drop

Never Attended

Census
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Board Approved:

June 2 – 1st 5-Week Classes
June 6 – 8-Week Classes
June 9 – 10-Week Classes
July 7 – 2nd 5-Week Classes
June 6 - 1st 5-Week Classes
June 8 - 8-Week Classes
June 20 - 10-Week Classes
July 11 - 2nd 5-Week Classes

Fall 2021

Spring 2022

Summer 2022

September 17 – Initial Refund

February 18 – Initial Refund

October 8 – 1 time loan

March 4 – 1st time loan

October 29 – 2 loan only

April 8 – 2 loan only

November 12– 2 8-week

April 22 – 2nd 8-week

October 1 - 1st 8-Week Classes

February 25 - 1st 8-Week Classes

November 19 - 16-Week Classes

April 15 - 16-Week Classes

December 3 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

April 22 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

October 11-12 - 1st 8-Week Classes

March 9-10 - 1st 8-Week Classes

December 6-10 - 16-Week Classes

May 9-13 - 16-Week Classes

December 8-9 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

May 11-12 - 2nd 8-Week Classes

October 12 - 1st 8-Week Classes

March 11 - 1st 8-Week Classes

June 30 - 1st 5-Week Classes

December 10 - 16-Week Classes & 2nd 8Week Classes

May 13 - 16-Week Classes

July 21 - 8-Week Classes

May 13 – 2 8-week classes

August 4 – 2nd 5 & 10-Week Classes

Grades Due

October 13 by noon -1st 8-Week Classes
December 10 by noon -16-Week & 2nd 8Week Classes

March 11 by noon – 1st 8-Week Classes
May 13 by noon – 16-Week & 2nd 8-Week
Classes

June 30 by noon – 1st 5-Week Classes
August 4 by noon for 8, 10, and 2nd 5 Week
Classes

Fall Break

October 13-15 – 8-Week & 16-Week
Classes

Financial Aid
Disbursements

st

nd

nd

Last Day to Drop a
Class

Final Exams

Semester Ends

Holidays

Graduation
Application Due
Commencement

nd

nd

September 6 - Labor Day

January 17 - MLK Holiday

November 24-26 - Thanksgiving Break

March 14-18 - Spring Break

December 15 - January 3 - Winter Break

April 15 - Good Friday

October 1 - December Graduation

February 1 - May Graduation
May 14
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June 23 – Initial Refund
July 7 – 1st time loan
July 21 – 2nd 5-week
June 23 - 1st 5-Week Classes
July 7 - 8-Week Classes
July 21 - 10-Week Classes
July 28 - 2nd 5-Week Classes
June 30 - 1st 5-Week Classes
July 20-21 - 8-Week Classes
August 3-4 - 10-Week Classes
August 4 - 2nd 5-Week Classes

May 30- Memorial Day
July 4 - Independence Day
June 1 - Summer Graduation

MEMORANDUM
VICE PRESIDENT OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT SERVICES
To:

Dr. Christina Ponce

From: Dr. Susan Guzmán-Treviño
Date: January 25, 2021
RE:

Approval of Associate of Science-Geosciences

We are requesting the Board of Trustees approve offering the Associate of Science-Geosciences
Degree.
Geosciences is a wide-ranging multidisciplinary field which encompasses exciting career paths in
areas such as environmental science, natural resource management, oceanography,
meteorology, remote sensing, oil and gas exploration, and natural disaster containment and
abatement. The Associate of Science-Geosciences will provide opportunities for students to
transfer seamlessly into geological science-related programs at the university level. The college
Curriculum Committee voted to approve adding this new degree on December 2, 2020.
Associate of Science-Geosciences
First Year Fall
16-Week Classes
GEOL 1403 Physical Geology
Mathematics Core Elective

4 hours
4 hours

1st 8-Week Class
ENGL 1301 Composition I

3 hours

2nd 8-Week Class
Communications Core Elective
Total Hours

3 hours
14 hours

First Year Spring
16-Week Classes
GEOL 1404 Historical Geology
4 hours
Mathematics Core Elective, Mathematics Restricted Elective, or Geosciences Restricted Elective
4 hours
1st 8-Week Class
HIST 1301 United States History I
3 hours
2nd 8-Week Class
HIST 1302 United States History II
Total Hours
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3 hours
14 hours

Page 2 Memo: Associate of Science-Geosciences
First Year Summer
Classes
Social and Behavioral Science Core Elective
Language, Philosophy, and Culture Core Elective
Total Hours
Second Year Fall
16-Week Classes
Geosciences Restricted Elective
Geosciences Restricted Elective
PHYS 1401 College Physics I or 2425 University Physics I

3 hours
3 hours
6 hours

3 hours
3 hours
4 hours

1st 8-Week Class
Creative Arts Core Elective
Total Hours

3 hours
13 hours

Second Year Spring
16-Week Classes
Geosciences Restricted Elective
PHYS 1402 College Physics II or 2426 University Physics II

3 hours
4 hours

1st 8-Week Class
GOVT 2305 Federal Government

3 hours

2nd 8-Week Class
GOVT 2306 Texas Government
Total Hours
Grand Total Hours

We appreciate your consideration of this request.
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3 hours
13 hours
60 hours

MEMORANDUM
VICE PRESIDENT OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT SERVICES
To:

Dr. Christina Ponce

From: Dr. Susan Guzmán-Treviño
Date: January 25, 2021
RE:

Approval of Associate of Science-Physical Sciences Degree

We are requesting the Board of Trustees approve offering the Associate of Science-Physical
Sciences.
Physical Sciences is a wide-ranging multidisciplinary field requiring critical and computational
thinking skills. This degree will provide opportunities for students to transfer seamlessly into
physical science programs at the university level. The college Curriculum Committee voted to
approve adding this new degree on December 2, 2020.
Associate of Science-Physical Sciences
First Year Fall
16-Week Classes
CHEM 1411 General Chemistry I
Mathematics Core Elective

4 hours
4 hours

1st 8-Week Classes
ENGL 1301 Composition I

3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
Communications Core Elective
Semester Credit Hours:

3 hours
14 hours

First Year Spring
16-Week Classes
CHEM 1412 General Chemistry II
Mathematics Core Elective or Mathematics Restricted Elective

4 hours
4 hours

1st 8-Week Classes
HIST 1301 United States History I

3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
HIST 1302 United States History II

3 hours
Semester Credit Hours:
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14 hours

PAGE 2 Memo Associate of Science-Physical Sciences
First Year Summer
Classes
Social and Behavioral Science Core Elective
Language, Philosophy and Culture Core Elective

3 hours
3 hours
Semester Credit Hours:

6 hours

Second Year Fall
16-Week Classes
Mathematics Restricted Elective or Physical Science Restricted Elective
PHYS 1401 College Physics I or 2425 University Physics I

3 hours
4 hours

1st 8-Week Classes
GOVT 2305 Federal Government

3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
GOVT 2306 Texas Government

3 hours
Semester Credit Hours:

13 hours

Second Year Spring
16-Week Classes
Physical Science Restricted Elective
Physical Science Restricted Elective
PHYS 1402 College Physics II or 2426 University Physics II

3 hours
3 hours
4 hours

1st 8-Week Classes
Creative Arts Core Elective

3 hours
Semester Credit Hours:

13 hours

Grand Total hours:

60 hours

We appreciate your consideration of this request.
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MEMORANDUM
VICE PRESIDENT OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT SERVICES
To:

Dr. Christina Ponce

From: Dr. Susan Guzmán-Treviño
Date: January 25, 2021
RE:

Approval of Level 1 Certificate-Cybersecurity

We are requesting the Board of Trustees approve offering the Level 1 Certificate in
Cybersecurity.
Cybersecurity is a high-demand field with a need for skilled applicants. Students who complete
this certificate will gain foundational knowledge of the cybersecurity practices that are used in the
industry. The college Curriculum Committee voted to approve adding this new certificate on
December 2, 2020.
Level 1 Certificate-Cybersecurity
First Year Fall
1st 8-Week Classes
COSC 1301

3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
ITNW 1325 Fundamentals of Networking
ITSY 1342 Information Technology Security
Semester Credit Hours:
First Year Spring
1st 8-Week Classes
ITSC 1325 Personal Computer Hardware
ITSC 1305 Introduction to Operating Systems

3 hours
3 hours
9 hours

3 hours
3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
Information Technology Elective
Semester Credit Hours:

3 hours
9 hours

Grand Total Hours:

18 hours

We appreciate your consideration of this request.
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MEMORANDUM
VICE PRESIDENT OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT SERVICES
To:

Dr. Christina Ponce

From: Dr. Susan Guzmán-Treviño
Date: January 25, 2021
RE:

Approval of Associate of Applied Science-Cybersecurity

We are requesting the Board of Trustees approve offering the Associate of Applied ScienceCybersecurity.
Cybersecurity is a high-demand field with a need for skilled applicants. This degree plan is
designed to prepare students for entering this field with the necessary skills and knowledge. This
new Associate of Applied Science in Cybersecurity also aligns well with bachelor programs that
include specializations in cybersecurity at Texas A&M University-Central Texas. The college
Curriculum Committee voted to approve adding this new degree on December 2, 2020.
Associate of Applied Science-Cybersecurity
First Year Fall
1st 8-Week Classes
ENGL 1301 Composition I
COSC 1301 or ITSC 1301

3 hours
3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
ITNW 1325 Fundamentals of Networking
ITSY 1342 Information Technology Security
Semester Credit Hours:

3 hours
3 hours
12 hours

First Year Spring
1st 8-Week Classes
ITSC 1325 Personal Computer Hardware
ITSC 1305 Introduction to Operating Systems

3 hours
3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
Language, Philosophy, and Culture or Creative Arts Core
English 2311 or 1302

3 hours
3 hours

Semester Credit Hours:
First Year Summer
Classes
COSC 1436 or ITSE 1407
Mathematics Core (MATH 1332 preferred)

12 hours

4 hours
3 hours
Semester Credit Hours:
145

7 hours

Second Year Fall
1st 8-Week Classes
CPMT 2349 Advanced Computer Networking Technology
ITSY 2301 Firewalls and Network Security

3 hours
3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
ITSY 2330 Intrusion Detection
ITSY 2341 Security Management Practices

3 hours
3 hours
Semester Credit Hours:

12 hours

Second Year Spring
1st 8-Week Classes
ITSY 2343 Computer System Forensics
ITSY 2345 Network Defense and Countermeasures

3 hours
3 hours

2nd 8-Week Classes
ITSC 2325 Advanced Linux
ITSY 2359 Security Assessment and Auditing

3 hours
3 hours
Semester Credit Hours:

12 hours

Semester Credit Hours:

3 hours
2 hours
5 hours

Grand Total hours:

60 hours

Second Year Summer
Social and Behavioral Science Core
2 semester credit hours as needed for graduation

We appreciate your consideration of this request.
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FY 2021 Budget Amendments
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FY 2021 Budget Amendments
• Align estimated grant funding with actual budgets
• Carl Perkins
• Adult Education and Literacy

• Appropriate grant funds received in FY 2021
• College Credit for Heroes
• Texas Reskilling Grant
• GEERs TEOG Aid

• Zero net-effect on the budget
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Existing Grant Programs
Program
Perkins Special Population

Revenue Amendment

Expense Amendment

Net

Explanation

2,225

2,225

-

Align budget with grant award

Perkins Workforce Ed. Course Manual

(99,960)

(99,960)

-

Align budget with grant award

Fed AEL 19-20

(50,000)

(50,000)

-

Grant year grant funds fully expended in FY 20

Fed AEL 20-21

(18,741)

(18,741)

-

Align budget with grant award

EL Civics 20-21

(12,195)

(12,195)

-

Align budget with grant award

(178,671)

(178,671)

-

Total
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New Grant Awards and Programs
Program

Revenue Amendment

Expense Amendment

Net

Explanation

College Credit for Hero 20-21

81,697

81,697

-

Budget new grant program

GEERS TEOG

72,140

72,140

-

Budget new grant program

AEL Workforce Integration

31,599

31,599

-

Budget new grant program

1,024,605

1,024,605

-

Budget new grant program

119,171

119,171

-

Budget new grant program

1,329,212

1,329,212

-

GEERS Reskilling
Nursing Innovation Grant
Total
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Aggregate Budget Amendments
Revenue Amendments

Expense Amendments

$1,150,541

$1,150,541
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Net Budget Impact
-

